Goodwater Montessori Public Charter School

Goodwater Montessori Board Meeting Agenda

DATE: Tue July 26th, 2022

TIME: 6:30pm - 8:00pm CDT

LOCATION: 402 W 8th St, Georgetown, TX 78626, Georgetown Library

GROUPS: Board, Board Support Staff

Items will not necessarily be discussed or considered in the order they are printed on the agenda below. If, during the course of the meeting, discussion of any item on the agenda should be held in an executive or closed session, the Board will convene in such executive or closed session as permitted by and in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code Chapter 551.

1. Call To Order

Expected to be in attendance: Carl Illig, Mary Evelyn Bowling, Christopher Hinds, Jan MacWatters, and Suzanne Robinson. The following staff is expected to be in attendance: Dr. Bruce Tabor, Marcy Steward, Kim Hodges, Alma Lahmon, and Kristi Lee.

2. Public Comments

Speakers will be allocated 2 minutes for public comments on matters of public concern.

3. Consent Agenda

- a. Enrollment Report
- b. Special Programs Report
- c. Student Academic Update
- d. Facilities Report
- e. Marketing Report
- f. Curriculum and Instruction Report

- g. Contracts and Agreements
- h. Minutes from June 28, 2022

4. Discussion and Action Items

a. Superintendent/CEO Report

b. National School Lunch & Breakfast Program

i. Contract Diwa Foods

c. TEKS Allotment and Certification 2022-2023

- i. Annual Certification that students have access to instructional materials that cover the Texas Essential Knowledge & Skills (TEKS)
- d. Scope and Sequence of Health Curriculum
- e. Consideration: Officer Elections
- f. Emergency Drill Dates 2022-2023
- g. Family Handbook and Student Code of Conduct 2022-2023
- h. Public Comment on 22/23 Federal Grants (ESSA and IDEA)
- i. Financial Report

5. Closed Session

Per Texas Government Code section §551.074 to discuss Personnel matters and/or Per Texas Government Code section §551.071 for a consultation with the school attorney and/or Per Texas Government Code section 551.072 to discuss Real Property.

6. Announce Date and Time of Next Board Meeting

7. Adjourn

| | | July 2022 | 2 Goodwater N | Iontessori Bo | ard of Directo | rs Meeting | | | |
|---------------|----------|---------------------------------------|--|--------------------------------|----------------------------------|--|---|---|------------|
| | | R | egistrar & Atte | ndance Repo | rt by Kim Hod | ges | | | |
| Grade | Capacity | Current # of Returning Students | Current # Of Accepted New Student Reg Spots | Current Community Totals | # Over Capacity | Total # of Students left on the Waitlist | # of Registrations sent to Parents, pending acceptance | # New Apps Received after June 20 for Board Report | |
| PK3 | 40 | 0 | 42 | 42 | 2 | 17 | 0 | 5 | |
| PK4 | 40 | 31 | 12 | 43 | 3 | 43 | 0 | 5 | |
| KG | 40 | 32 | 20 | 52 | 12 | 75 | 0 | 6 | |
| TOTAL | 120 | 63 | 74 | 137 | 17 | 135 | 0 | 16 | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | 52 | 41 | 16 | 57 | 5 | 9 | 0 | 3 | |
| 2 | 52 | 37 | 20 | 57 | 5 | 1 | 1 | 4 | |
| 3 | 51 | 42 | 13 | 55 | 4 | 1 | 0 | 2 | |
| TOTAL | 155 | 120 | 49 | 169 | 14 | 11 | 1 | 9 | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | 35 | 33 | 11 | 44 | 9 | 0 | 0 | 1 | |
| 5 | 35 | 33 | 8 | 41 | 6 | 1 | 1 | 4 | |
| 6 | 35 | 17 | 12 | 29 | -6 | 0 | 0 | 3 | |
| TOTAL | 105 | 83 | 31 | 114 | 9 | 1 | 1 | 8 | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| 7 | 20 | 17 | 3 | 20 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 1 | |
| 8 | 20 | 15 | 3 | 18 | -2 | 0 | 0 | 0 | |
| TOTAL | 40 | 32 | 6 | 38 | -2 | 0 | 1 | 1 | |
| | | | | | | | | | Total Apps |
| TOTALS | 420 | 298 | 160 | 458 | 38 | 147 | 3 | 34 | 157 |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Primary | РК3 | PK4 | KG | Grand Total | Capacity of each Community | Number of Spots Available | Waitlist: | | |
| Cypress | 9 | 9 | 12 | 30 | 27 | -3 | | | |
| Desert Willow | 9 | 9 | 10 | 28 | 25 | -3 | PK3 = 17 | | |
| Maple | 7 | 9 | 10 | 26 | 22 | -4 | PK4 = 43 | | |

| July 2022 Goodwater Montessori Board of Directors Meeting | | | | | | | | | |
|---|----------|---------------------------------------|--|--------------------------------|----------------------------------|--|---|---|--|
| | | Re | egistrar & Atte | ndance Repo | rt by Kim Hod | ges | | | |
| Grade | Capacity | Current # of Returning Students | Current # Of Accepted New Student Reg Spots | Current Community Totals | # Over Capacity | Total # of Students left on the Waitlist | # of Registrations sent to Parents, pending acceptance | # New Apps Received after June 20 for Board Report | |
| Mulberry | 8 | 8 | 10 | 26 | 22 | -4 | KG = 75 | | |
| Sassafras | 9 | 8 | 10 | 27 | 24 | -3 | | | |
| Grand Total | 42 | 43 | 52 | 137 | 120 | -17 | 135 | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Lower El | 1st | 2nd | 3rd | Grand Total | Capacity of each Community | Number of Spots Available | Waitlist: | | |
| Cardinal | 10 | 10 | 10 | 30 | 27 | -3 | | | |
| Hummingbird | 10 | 8 | 10 | 28 | 26 | -2 | 1st = 9 | | |
| Mockingbird | 7 | 11 | 8 | 26 | 24 | -2 | 2nd = 1 | | |
| Redwing | 10 | 10 | 10 | 30 | 27 | -3 | 3rd = 1 | | |
| Roadrunner | 10 | 10 | 9 | 29 | 27 | -2 | | | |
| Warblers | 10 | 8 | 8 | 26 | 24 | -2 | | | |
| Grand Total | 57 | 57 | 55 | 169 | 155 | -14 | 11 | | |
| Upper El | 4th | 5th | 6th | Grand Total | Capacity of each Community | Number of Spots Available | Waitlist: | | |
| Brazos | 13 | 7 | 9 | 29 | 26 | -3 | | | |
| Guadalupe | 11 | 11 | 6 | 28 | 26 | -2 | 4th = 0 | | |
| San Antonio | 7 | 14 | 7 | 28 | 26 | -2 | 5th = 1 | | |
| San Gabriel | 13 | 9 | 7 | 29 | 27 | -2 | 6th = 0 | | |
| Grand Total | 44 | 41 | 29 | 114 | 105 | -9 | 1 | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Adolescents | 7th | 8th | | Grand Total | Capacity of each Community | Number of Spots Available | Waitlist: | | |
| Bluebonnet | 20 | | | 20 | 20 | 0 | 7th = 0 | | |
| Bluebonnet | | 18 | | 18 | 20 | 2 | 8th = 0 | | |

| | July 2022 Goodwater Montessori Board of Directors Meeting | | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|---------------------------------------|--|--------------------------------|--------------------|--|---|---|--|--|
| Registrar & Attendance Report by Kim Hodges | | | | | | | | | | |
| Grade | Capacity | Current # of Returning Students | Current # Of Accepted New Student Reg Spots | Current Community Totals | # Over Capacity | Total # of Students left on the Waitlist | # of Registrations sent to Parents, pending acceptance | # New Apps Received after June 20 for Board Report | | |
| Grand Total | | | | 38 | 40 | 2 | 0 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| Totals: | | | | 458 | 420 | -38 | 147 | | | |



Curriculum and Instruction Report Submitted by Sandy Worcester 7/19/2022

- 1. Family Engagement Plan completed: Jun 23, 2022
- 2. PD for Fall: Conscious Discipline two-hour virtual training on August 9.
- Trillium Elementary Bootcamp for new Guides registration is in process for the August 1 start date. Sharmayne will enroll our 4 new Upper Elementary Guides Assistant training(<u>Trillium, NCMPS</u>) is tabled until September.
- 4. <u>Behavior Ladder revision</u> for Goodwater.
- 5. TEA Recommended the Great Body Shop is being considered for purchase for our Health Curriculum.
- 6. Summer School: 6 elementary students attended regularly over 12 days.



Board Meeting Report Marketing and Recruiting Report July 26, 2022 From Kristi Lee

Marketing:

Our marketing efforts for new families target the 3-8th grades. This year we will assess what avenues worked best in the past and create a plan to bolster these wait lists.

The marketing committee will meet again in August to discuss branding and community engagement.

We are planning a revamp of the website by Chris Hinds' company over the summer.

Marketing and recruiting for new hires:

Hiring for our 2022-2023 openings is going well. Our team is almost complete.



Board Meeting Minutes May 24, 2022 6:30 pm- 8:00 pm Georgetown Public Library Decisions are highlighted.

Expected to be in attendance: Carl Illig, Mary Evelyn Bowling, Christopher Hinds, Jan MacWatters, and Suzanne Robinson. The following staff is expected to be in attendance: Dr. Bruce Tabor, Marcy Steward, Sandy Worcester, and Kristi Lee. **In attendance:** Carl Illig, Mary Evelyn Bowling, Christopher Hinds, Jan MacWatters, and Suzanne Robinson. Dr. Bruce Tabor, Marcy Steward, Sandy Worcester, and Kristi Lee.

- 1. Carl Illig called the meeting to order at 6:31 pm. A moment of silence was observed for the victims of the Uvalde school shooting.
- Public Comments: A video submitted by a lower elementary guide was played. It was a student-led English Language Arts project.

3. Consent Agenda

Considering the consent agenda, Chris Hinds moved to accept the consent agenda as presented. Jan MacWatters seconded the motion. The motion was passed unanimously. (5-0)

4. Discussion and Action Items

- A. Waivers; Kim Hodges presented the waivers and said we do not need a low attendance waiver. We are considering a waiver on professional development days. Mary Evelyn Bowling moved to approve the waiver. Suzanne Robinson seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
- B. Superintendent Report by Dr. Bruce Tabor; Safety and Security audit continues, and safety is our priority in the school. We are up to date on our emergency drills, and last Friday, May 20, we were asked to shelter in place by the Williamson County Sheriff's office. The staff and students acted appropriately. The sheriff's office promptly reacted to the incident across the street and cleared Goodwater for a regular dismissal.

The enrollment report by Kim Hodges is detailed and helpful. Thanks to Kim for working diligently and enrolling over 450 students for next year.

As for marketing, we sent GMS brochures to 980 homes, with 30% of people in these homes being 7-13 years old.

This week we have primary, lower elementary, upper elementary, and adolescent moving up ceremonies.

For the year, we have 80 Covid cases and continue to update our website dashboard. Our Staar assessments are finished, and I would like to thank Sandy Worcester and Roberta Givens for organized and well-planned test days. Technology held up well. Preliminary results will be available this week, and parents have received instructions on how to access and interpret the results.

Coffee with Dr. Bruce continues in August via Zoom. E-therapy is finished, and we will consider using this again next year.

Volunteers for the garden club and orchard are working hard to keep the grounds up. We appreciate them very much. This is the last board meeting for 2021-2022, and I want to thank the volunteers, staff, and families. Also, the board for their support and the students for their commitment.

C. Proposed 2022-2023 Academic Calendar. Carl Illig asked Mary Evelyn Bowling, board secretary, to review the board process in reviewing and approving school calendars and report back in July.

Jan MacWatters said she likes the calendar; Chris Hinds agreed but relayed a message from a parent that disliked November 1 being a regular school day. Carl Illig asked for other comments. Suzanne Robinson thanked the staff for going back and creating another calendar option and suggested developing two school year calendars next year. (to cover two school years). Mary Evelyn Bowling appreciated the new calendar. Mary Evelyn Bowling moved to accept the calendar as proposed. Jan MacWatters seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

D. Financial Report; A discussion of the proposed budget began. Carl Illig asked the board to have a high-level discussion of the budget rather than a detailed conversation. The board was deciding on giving the staff raises. Carl Illig said we have options. A slide of the current budget beside the budget options was shown. Kimber Fuccello and Marcy Steward presented the current year, what could change, what will change, and scenarios with bond options.

Scenarios included No Building, Building CI, Building No CI.

Other districts have built-in increases to level the scale to match other schools. Our first-year teachers start at 41K; others in the area are over 50K, said, Marcy Steward. Carl Illig said that other small districts in our area are in the same boat. Kimber Fuccello said we should be methodical about this; Mary Evelyn Bowling said we need to close the pay gaps. Dr. Bruce Tabor said we need to find a way to pay our new teachers more. The biggest pay gap is with our first-year teachers or teachers with a few years of experience.

Chris Hinds pointed out that this only covers inflation. Carl Illig said we are not considering inflation tonight.

Discussion about bonds was that Carl Illig, Chris Hinds, and Kimber Fuccello were optimistic about getting the bonds.

Carl Illig asked where is the money when the board wanted to buy something. We need to allocate 50K for the board to spend on marketing and other things.

Marcy Steward explained how we use funds for marketing by adjusting the budget as needed.

Kimber Fuccello said she works a budget from known items and then adds money into those areas for unexpected expenses. She said we would not know about the bond before deciding about staff raises.

Chris Hinds said we should grasp at every possible way to pay teachers more, and Jan MacWatters agreed. Suzanne Robinson asked about any additional way to pay for salary increases while saving for unforeseen expenses.

Kimber Fuccello responded that we could do stipends or bonuses during the year next year.

The board discussed paying principal, interest, and how to make these decisions without burdening the school in the future.

Jan MacWatters said it is important to preserve our population and community; we are small and have great guides. Let's work to keep them.

Carl Illig said it would be better to approve a number for total increases than to manage how the number is used.

Mary Evelyn Bowling moved to approve the salary increases totaling 150K. Jan MacWatters seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

E. Board Governance; Carl Illig let the board and staff know that he wants to transition away from the role of Board President due to a substantial increase in his current personal business responsibilities. He offered to continue to support and serve the board in many ways. He suggested that Mary Evelyn Bowing would be a great candidate for an Interim President.

Carl Illig moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:00 pm. Chris Hinds seconded the motion. It passed unanimously. (5-0)

5. **Closed Session** Carl Illig moved to begin the closed session. Chris Hinds seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously.

The board members and Dr. Bruce went into a closed session at 7:54 pm.

Per Texas Government Code section §551.074 to discuss personnel matters and/or Per Texas Government Code section §551.071 for a consultation with the school attorney and/or Per Texas Government Code section 551.072 to discuss Real Property.

6. Adjourn

8:24 pm Carl Illig moved to adjourn the meeting. Mary Evelyn seconded the motion; the motion passed unanimously.



July 2022 Report to the Board Submitted by: Roberta Givens, School Improvement Coordinator

The Assessment Calendar for 22-23 is complete. The following Beginning of Year (BOY) assessment activities are scheduled (A brief description and the grade-levels assessed are also included):

August 29 - September 2, 2022 - <u>Measures of Academic Progress (MAP Growth)</u> - administered to all K-8 grade students 3 times per year. Measures academic progress in reading and math and tracks the academic growth of students.

September 6 - 9, 2022 - <u>Texas Kindergarten Entry Assessment (TX-KEA)</u> - The Language and Literacy domain will be administered to all Kindergarten students. This BOY assessment satisfies TEA's requirement for the administration of an approved literacy screener to all Kindergarten students. The results of this screener will be submitted to the Early Childhood Data System (ECDS) as required by Texas Education Code 28.006.

September 12 - 16, 2022 - <u>Texas Primary Reading Inventory (TPRI)</u> - Administered to all 1st and 2nd grade students. This assessment provides a summary of reading skills and also fulfills the requirements of TEC 28.006 (administration of an early reading inventory to all students).

September 20 - 23, 2022 - <u>CIRCLE Progress Monitoring -</u> Administered to all Pre-K students (4 year olds). This assessment covers all five of the required domains, and BOY data and EOY data are also submitted to the ECDS as required by TEA.



710 Stadium Dr. Georgetown, TX 78626 www.goodwatermontessori.org 512-931-3560

Superintendent Report 07/26/2022

GENERAL INFORMATION

Safety

Three Year Security Audit due August 15, 2022

Completed walkthrough with Safety Specialist who is on our School Safety and Security Committee to discuss weak points at school to shore up the building.

- Proposals
 - Get bids on putting armor shields on the front entrance, windows surrounding the vestibule, the window for the front office, and the four exterior windows that are in the atrium areas facing the parking lot.
 - Door buzzer that can lock the front door
 - Badge access to the Administration office next to the front entrance
 - Add additional Cameras in the upstairs wing, atrium, hallway to primary, primary wing, additional cameras in front and back of the portable building, cameras at the orchard
 - Add an interior door at the north end of the upstairs wing
 - All interior double doors should have the capacity to automatically lock in the event of a lockdown
- Students will be provided with additional training about school safety and what to do in an emergency Received the first bid for additional cameras to increase coverage of the school
- Received the first bid for upgraded cameras to increase coverage of school
- August 8, 2022, 3:00 pm is the next Safety and Security Committee Meeting

ENROLLMENT/ATTENDANCE/2022-2023

458 students

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

- 1. Preparing for back to school in service is underway
 - a. Guides return on August 3rd
 - b. Assistants return on August 8th
- 2. Extensive training in all facets of our operation including Academics, Security, additional training for new staff

COVID UPDATE

We continue to monitor COVID. Our School Program Coordinator monitors information from CDC and WCCHD for any updates. As we get closer to school, we will make any modifications.

ACADEMICS

- 1. Transparency Classroom training for new staff will be provided during professional development
- 2. Accelerated Instruction, Child Study, and Response to Intervention schedules are being finalized for students who need additional support

COFFEE WITH DR. BRUCE

Our next Coffee with Dr. Bruce will be scheduled for August 10th at 10:00 am. The link for this conversation is: <u>https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88433266770?pwd=grQtbj2ZP59GzelVZyKUKedrycWQZo.1</u>

We will be introducing administration staff and discussing the format for our monthly coffee meetings.

SPECIAL EDUCATION

We are finalizing our Special Education Coordinator position. We have several options and are discussing those options at the present time.

Please join us for breakfast on August 3 and August 8 as we welcome our staff back at 8:00 am.

Also, join us for Meet the Teacher nights on August 11 and 12 from 5:00-6:30 pm.

This concludes my report. Kindest Regards, Dr. Bruce



Emergency Drill Schedule for 2022-2023

| Drill | Scheduled | Completed | Forms Completed |
|------------------------|--------------------|-----------|-----------------|
| Secure Lock-out | October 24, 2022 | | |
| Hold, Shelter in Place | February 10, 2022 | | |
| Shelter Bad Weather | March 3, 2022 | | |
| Lockdown | September 16, 2022 | | |
| Lockdown | January 20, 2022 | | |
| Evacuation | August 31, 2022 | | |
| | September 23, 2022 | | |
| | October 26, 2022 | | |
| | November 18, 2022 | | |
| | December 14, 2022 | | |
| | January 27, 2023 | | |
| | February 24, 2023 | | |
| | March 24, 2023 | | |
| | April 21, 2023 | | |
| | May 19, 2023 | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |

Federal Grant Entitlements Summary

Preliminary Planning Amounts, Program Intent, & Allowable/Proposed Uses (Rev. 7/22/22)

LEA: Goodwater Montessori

School Year: 2022-2023

| Program, Program Intent and Entitlement |
|---|
| Title I, Part A entitlement (Fund 211.00): \$25,992 |
| Program Intent: |
| Funding for resources to help schools with high concentrations of students from low-income families |
| provide a high-quality education enabling all children to meet the state's student performance standards. |
| Allowable/Proposed Uses: |
| All activities that are part of the comprehensive plan to improve student performance and upgrade the |
| entire educational program including but not limited to stipends for hard to fill positions and for RTI |
| certifications. |
| Title II, Part A entitlement (Fund 255): <u>\$6,584</u> |
| Program Intent: |
| Teacher and Principal Training and Recruiting Funds (TPTR) are designated to supplement staff |
| development in district/campus priority areas, enhance recruiting, hiring, and retention of highly qualified |
| teachers and improve the quality of our principal, teacher, and paraprofessional work force through staff |
| development. |
| Allowable/Proposed Uses: |
| To provide training, technical assistance, and capacity-building to assist teachers, principals, or other |
| school leaders as tied to improving student instruction and academic achievement and other activities that |
| are evidence-based. |
| Title IV, Part A entitlement (Fund 289): \$10,000 |
| Program Intent: |
| Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grant Funds (SSAEP) are designed to improve students' |
| academic achievement by increasing the capacity of the district to provide access to, and opportunities for, |
| a well-rounded education for all students; improve school conditions in order to create a healthy and safe |
| school environment; and improve access to technology in the classroom. |
| Allowable/Proposed Uses: |
| Implement school safety measures. Other activities and programs to support student access to, and success |
| in, a variety of well-rounded education experiences, establish learning environments and enhance students' |
| effective learning skills that are essential for school readiness and academic success. |
| IDEA-B Formula Grant entitlement (Fund 224): \$49,569 |
| Program Intent: |
| Provide special education and related services to children with disabilities ages $3-21$. |
| Allowable/Proposed Uses: |
| IDEA-B formula funds must be used only to pay the excess cost of providing special education and related |
| services to children with disabilities and must not be used to pay for all costs directly attributable to the |
| education of a child with a disability. |
| IDEA-B Preschool Grant entitlement (Fund 225): \$538 |
| Program Intent: |
| Provide special education and related services to children with disabilities ages 3–5. |
| Allowable/Proposed Uses: |
| In addition to IDEA-B Formula funds, IDEA-B Preschool funds supplement and increase services beyond |
| the level of State and local funds expended for preschool students ages 3–5 with disabilities. |
| Texas COVID Learning Acceleration Supports (TCLAS) entitlement (Fund 279): \$443,500 |
| (Expenditures thru 8/31/22: \$42,516) Remaining Amount: \$400,984) |
| |
| Program Intent: |
| Texas COVID Learning Acceleration Supports (TCLAS) is a set of targeted supports available to Local |
| Education Agencies (LEAs) to accelerate student learning in the wake of COVID-19. |
| Allowable/Proposed Uses: |
| Decision1: Strategic Planning supports including data strategies. |
| Decision4: Paraprofessional Certification and Education. |
| Decision 6: High-impact tutoring. |
| |



Goodwater Montessori School 2022-2023

Family Handbook & Student Code of Conduct

Goodwater Montessori School

710 Stadium Drive Georgetown, Texas 78626 512-931-3560 www.goodwatermontessori.org goodwater@goodwatermontessori.org

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Welcome to Goodwater Montessori Public Charter School | Page 5 |
|---|---------|
| Goodwater Montessori School Board of Directors 2022-2023 Board of Directors and Meetings | Page 6 |
| Mission, Vision, and Values | |
| The Montessori Method | |
| The Montessori Environment | Page 10 |
| Charter Schools Geographic Boundaries Funding | |
| 2020-2021 School Calendar | Page 13 |
| 2020-2021 Faculty and Staff | |
| Disclaimers Anti-Discrimination Sexual Harassment | |
| Enrollment and AdmissionApplicationGeographic RestrictionsLotteryPre-Kindergarten AdmissionsWaitlistLate ApplicationsRegistration InformationReturning StudentsExclusion from AdmissionRe-EnrollmentTransfersWithdrawal | Page 15 |
| Attendance Compulsory Attendance Rules Excessive Absences | Page 19 |

| | Excused Absences Unexcused Absences Tardiness Excessive Tardiness Truancy | |
|------------|---|---------|
| Arrival an | nd Dismissal | Page 22 |
| | Early Departure From School | |
| | After-School Care | |
| | Use of Facilities Before and After School | |
| | Arrival and Dismissal Procedures | |
| | Parent Escorts | |
| Parent an | nd Guardian Involvement | Page 23 |
| | Communication | |
| | Parent –Guide/Staff Communication | |
| | Prohibited Forms of Communication | |
| | Parent Lunch with Student | |
| | Audio and Visual Recording and Photography | |
| | Solicitation of Goods and Services | |
| | Party Invitations | |
| | Volunteer Opportunities | |
| School Sa | afety and Security | Page 25 |
| | Visits & Tours | |
| | Weather | |
| | Fire and Emergency Drills | |
| | Field Trips | |
| Dress Co | de | Page 26 |
| | Tops | |
| | Bottoms | |
| | Outdoor Footwear | |
| | Indoor Footwear | |
| | Outerwear & Hats | |
| | Miscellaneous | |
| Technolo | gy in the Classroom: Responsible Use Policy | Page 27 |
| | Internet Use | |
| | Email /Google Drive/Internet Chat | |
| | Social Media | |
| | Personal Electronics | |

Food Services and Nutrition

Lunch

Competitive Foods

Food Provided to Students by Parents

Birthday and Classroom Parties

School-Sponsored Classroom Parties

School-Wide Celebrations

Health Guidelines

Food Allergies Water

Medication

Illness and Injuries

Allergies

Immunizations

Nuisance Diseases

STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT

Montessori Behavior Background Standards of Behavior

Authority and Jurisdiction

General Conduct

Disregard for Authority

Mistreatment of Others

Disrespecting School Property

Biting

Bullying

Physical Safety

Student Refusal to Work

Breach of Code of Conduct

Discipline Protocol: Procedure For Re-directable Behaviors

Program For Students Who Cannot Go Back To Class

Playground-specific Discipline Policies

Elementary Level Discipline Procedures

Spitting, Kicking, Hitting, Bullying, and Pushing

Inappropriate Language

Intentional Destruction of Materials or Possessions of Others

Leaving School or the Attempt to Leave

Primary Level Discipline Procedures

Spitting, Kicking, Hitting, Bullying, and Pushing

Page 30

Page 34

Page 37

Biting Misuse of Materials Inappropriate Language Behavior Management/Techniques Process for Suspension Process for Expulsion

Conflict Resolution

Informal Conflict Resolution Formal Conflict Resolution Page 48



August 2022

Dear Goodwater Parents,

Welcome to Goodwater! We are honored that you have entrusted your children to us, and we pledge to create an authentic Montessori environment in which students will thrive as Maria Montessori intended.

This handbook is an information source for our school and a guide to Goodwater policies. I urge you to read it and refer to it during the school year whenever you have a question. As communities change and evolve, this document may be revised as needed as we progress through the school year. The most current version will always be posted on our website.

This handbook includes the Student Code of Conduct that is a document required by state law. Your signature acknowledging receipt of this code is required. Please follow the link found on the handbook page of our website.

Kindest Regards, Dr. Bruce Tabor

Goodwater Montessori School 710 Stadium Drive Georgetown, Texas 78626 (512) 931-3560 www.goodwatermontessori.org goodwater@goodwatermontessori.org

Goodwater Montessori School Board of Directors

Goodwater Montessori Charter School is operated under the auspices of WilCo Montessori Partners (WCMP), an IRS-authorized 501(c)(3) non-profit organization established in 2014. Board members serve three-year terms and employ the Superintendent/ CEO, approve the budget, monitor expenditures, and establish policies for operating the school and ensuring its financial viability.

Meetings

Most board meetings are held at 6:30 p.m. on the third Tuesday of each month. Additional meetings may be scheduled as needed. Unless otherwise indicated, all meetings will be held at:

Goodwater Montessori Public Charter School 710 Stadium Drive, Georgetown, Texas 78626

Goodwater board meetings are open to the public. Within the limits of the Texas Open Meetings Act, as detailed in Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, some subject matter may be discussed in closed sessions. Those topics are consideration of real estate contract transactions, other contract negotiations, personnel matters, student hearings, and legal matters.

Board Agendas are posted at the school and on the school website at least 72 hours prior to the meeting.

- Members of the community are invited to address the Goodwater Board for up to two minutes during the public comment period of scheduled board meetings.
- In such a case, the board of directors is required to listen and may ask clarifying questions but may not act on any subject matter that is not included in the board agenda.
- Community members are welcome to remain for the rest of a board meeting but may not participate in deliberations.

2022-2023 Board of Directors

President -Carl Illig Secretary - Mary Evelyn Bowling Treasurer - Suzanne Robinson Member - Chris Hinds Member- Jan MacWatters cillig@goodwatermontessori.org mbowling@goodwatermontessori.org suzanne.robinson@goodwatermontessori.org chinds@goodwatermontessori.org jmacwatters@goodwatermontessori.org

Mission, Vision, and Values

Mission

To provide an exceptional Montessori education to all children and their families, encouraging a life-long love of learning and active participation in their communities and the world.

Vision

To develop conscientious citizens who approach their world with confidence, creativity, and collaboration.

Values

Diversity, Independence, Joy, Passion, and Respect.

The Montessori Method

Montessori education was founded in 1907 by Italian physician Maria Montessori M.D. who based her educational methods on scientific observation of children's learning processes. Dr. Montessori believed that "We should not fill children with facts but rather cultivate their own natural desire to learn." Guided by this discovery that children teach themselves, Dr. Montessori designed a "prepared environment" in which children freely choose from a number of developmentally appropriate activities.

Montessori education is:

Child-Centered

- Mixed-age classrooms allow students to have repeated exposure to lessons and become leaders to the younger children in the class.
- Child-centered education is facilitated by a Montessori guide who is consistently aware of the child's academic progress and emotional development.

Collaborative

- A collaborative approach to education emphasizing long work periods and group project work that reflects the workplace, preparing children to be creative contributors to their communities
- Integrated lessons with high-quality, hands-on materials that help the child to understand the interconnected nature of all subject areas

Impactful

 Montessori education is based on scientific observations of human development. Dr. Maria Montessori, a scientist, and a medical doctor, based her approach on thousands of hours of observation of children and a lifetime of experimentation and refinement, developing a scientific model of human development and an educational approach that supports fully realized human potential. (National Center for Montessori in the Public Sector.)

Goodwater Montessori School believes that the Montessori Method of educating the child is a highly effective and innovative approach. Well-researched and in place at more than 22,000 private and public schools worldwide, Montessori is increasingly recognized as utilizing practices — such as mixed-age grouping, differentiated instruction, and social-emotional learning — that best conform to students' natural learning instincts. The American Montessori Society (www.amshq.org) explains that students need adults to expose them to possibilities in their lives, but the children must determine their response to all the possibilities.

Montessori schools teach the same basic skills as traditional schools and offer a rigorous academic program. Most of the subject areas are familiar — such as math, science, history, geography, and language — but they are presented through an integrated approach that brings separate strands of the curriculum together. While studying a map of Africa, for example, students may explore the art, history, and inventions of several African nations. This may lead them to examine ancient Egypt, including hieroglyphs, and their place in the history of writing.

The study of the pyramids, of course, is a natural bridge to geometry. This approach to curriculum shows the interrelatedness of all things. It also allows students to become thoroughly immersed in a topic—and to give their curiosity full rein.

Goodwater has a rich and rigorous Montessori curriculum aligned with the State learning standards, the Texas Essential Knowledge and Skills (TEKS), which span the years of academic and social/emotional development. The trained guide teaches the concepts aligned with the TEKS with precisely made, hands-on didactic materials to aid the students' knowledge base and develop critical thinking skills. In doing so, we are able to accommodate students' learning needs through content, process, product, and specialized learning environments. The guide records the students' progress daily in the recordkeeping system.

Research by pediatric neuropsychologist Steve Hughes, Ph.D., about Montessori education, as explained on his website (www.GoodatDoingThings.com), presents interesting conclusions. Dr. Hughes states that "Montessori education is a brain-based, developmental method, which allows children to make creative choices in discovering people, places, and knowledge in the world. It is hands-on learning, self-expression, and collaborative play in a beautifully crafted environment of respect, peace, and joy. It is also about brain development. A skillful Montessori guide knows what stage a child is in their brain development, and they are meeting it, and they are feeding it. The Montessori Method is like education designed by a pediatric developmental neuropsychologist."

Montessori graduates do well in the world beyond the classroom. Increasingly, the modern world favors creative thinkers who combine personal initiative with strong collaborative skills — precisely the characteristics that Montessori education nurtures. Adults who attended Montessori schools have spoken of their childhood experiences with the Montessori method saying it gave them not only the ability to work cooperatively in existing settings, but also the skills of confidence, creativity, and communication needed to make innovative and groundbreaking changes.

For more information about Montessori, we recommend:

- Association Montessori Internationale www.amiusa.org
- National Center for Montessori in the Public Sector www.public-montessori.org
- North American Montessori Teachers Association www.montessori-namta.org

"The formation of children's capacities is hugely important during the first years of life – not just academic learning, but the ability to concentrate, persevere, and think for themselves, as well as the ability to interact well with others. Children who have been given the right kind of support during these years grow into adults who are self-motivated, love learning, who can think flexibly and creatively, and who are not only conscious of the needs of others but actively foster harmony as they go through life."

Association Montessori Internationale (www.amiusa.org)

The Montessori Environment

Goodwater Montessori School offers a true Montessori environment, mixed-age classrooms, Montessori materials and curriculum, individualized instruction, and Montessori-certified guides. Our mission is lived out vibrantly every day on our campus and done with grace and courtesy consistent with Montessori guiding principles.

Goodwater Montessori classrooms have beautiful hands-on learning materials suitable for individual and small group learning. Our school days include long blocks of work time for the introduction, guided practice, and mastery of concepts in the curriculum. The multi-age classrooms help facilitate peer tutoring and community building.

A multi-age grouping typically spans three years, forming a community:

- Primary Ages 3 to 6 (Pre-K through Kindergarten).
- Lower Elementary Ages 6 to 9 (Grades 1, 2, and 3).
- Upper Elementary Ages 9 to 12 (Grades 4, 5, and 6).
- Adolescent Ages 13 to 14 (Grades 7 and 8)

The multi-age class groupings allow the children to be in a class of various ages. Modeling, communication, and collaboration are natural outcomes of working together.

The classroom guide uses strategies, including our three-hour, uninterrupted work cycle, to deliver the lesson to the students. Direct instruction with didactic materials is used to introduce a concept. The guide follows the child through guided practice to eventual mastery of a concept. The three-year intervals in Montessori allow the child time to further explore and develop deeper understandings of academic content, as well as develop deeper concentration by carrying out long-term projects and work. Subject matters and concepts are intervoven and interconnected in the Montessori curriculum. This promotes deeper understanding and broader discovery.

Charter Schools

Charter schools are public schools that extend the privilege of school choice to all families. Funded by the State of Texas, they provide options for parents and students in pursuing their ideal educational experience. Children attending charter schools benefit from high academic standards and innovative approaches to teaching and learning. Charter schools are open to all children who are eligible to attend traditional public schools. They are governed by a local board using adopted bylaws and are required to meet all Texas school accountability standards.

Charter schools are organized by a founding group that is passionate about the basic tenets of the curriculum. In Goodwater's case, that's WilCo Montessori Partners. Board members, staff members, parents, students, and community members are attracted to the charter school because their interests coincide with the charter school's educational program and special themes. Charter schools are responsive to parents' concerns because they operate in a free market. Parents make the choice to send their children to the charter school, and parent involvement in school activities is welcome and encouraged.

Charter schools were authorized by the Texas Legislature in 1995 as an alternative to traditional public schools. Goodwater Montessori School, under the auspices of WilCo Montessori Partners, was awarded a charter by the Texas State Board of Education in July 2016 and opened in 2017.

Open enrollment charter schools are public schools that have the flexibility to choose curriculum, set school calendars, maintain flexibility in hiring, and adapt to the educational needs of individual students. Charter schools have increased accountability and must also meet the academic achievement and financial management standards required by the Texas Education Agency. Among other things, Texas charter schools are tasked with:

- a) Improving student learning,
- b) Increasing the choice of learning opportunities within the public school system,
- c) Establishing a new form of accountability for public schools, and
- d) Encouraging different and innovative learning methods.

Geographic Boundaries

As a charter school, Goodwater enrolls students from a much larger boundary than a traditional public school. All students (except those adjudicated of a crime) living within Williamson County are eligible for enrollment in Goodwater on a space-available basis. Any family residing within Williamson County may apply for enrollment to Goodwater Montessori School.

Funding

Charter schools receive state funds based on the average daily attendance (ADA) of students (as do traditional public schools); however, they do not receive funds from local tax revenue. Texas Education Agency (TEA) data indicates that charter schools receive approximately \$1,000 less in total revenue per pupil than traditional public schools. In the State of Texas, the funding for students follows the student; therefore, a school is funded based upon the children that attend that school, as well as fundraising.

Goodwater Montessori School

2022-2023 School Calendar

| Su | М | Tu | W | Th | F | Sa |
|----|----|-----|----|----|----|----|
| | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 |
| 7 | 8 | 9 | 10 | 11 | 12 | 13 |
| 14 | 15 | (6) | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 |
| 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 | 27 |
| 28 | 29 | 30 | 31 | | | |
| | | | | | 12 | 21 |

| Su | М | Tu | W | Th | F | Sa |
|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|
| | | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 |
| 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | 10 | 11 | 12 |
| 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 |
| 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 |
| 27 | 28 | 29 | 30 | | | |
| | | | | | 17 | 17 |

| Su | М | Tu | W | Th | F | Sa |
|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|
| | | | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
| 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | 10 | 11 |
| 12 | | 14 | | 16 | 17 | 18 |
| 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 |
| 26 | 27 | 28 | | | | |
| | | | | | 18 | 19 |

| | | | ay 20 | | | |
|----|----|----|-------|----|----|----|
| Su | M | Tu | W | Th | F | Sa |
| | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 |
| 7 | 8 | 9 | 10 | 11 | 12 | 13 |
| 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 |
| 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 | 27 |
| 28 | 29 | 30 | 31 | | | |
| | | | | | 19 | 20 |



Weather Day/School Closed 6 Weeks



| Planning/Development Days | |
|----------------------------------|---|
| First Day of School for students | |
| Labor Day - Closed | |
| Planning/Development Day | |
| Fall Break - no school | |
| Teacher Conferences - no school | |
| Thanksgiving Break - No School | |
| Winter Break - no school | |
| Planning/Development Day | |
| | First Day of School for students Labor Day - Closed Planning/Development Day Fall Break - no school Teacher Conferences - no school Thanksgiving Break - No School Winter Break - no school |

Calendar Templates by Vertex42.com

| | S | epte | mbe | r 202 | 22 | |
|----|----|------|-----|-------|----|----|
| Su | М | Tu | W | Th | F | Sa |
| | | | | 1 | 2 | 3 |
| 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | 10 |
| 11 | 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 |
| 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 |
| 25 | 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 | 30 | |
| | | | | | 20 | 21 |

| Su | М | Tu | W | Th | F | Sa |
|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|
| | | | | 1 | 2 | 3 |
| 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | 10 |
| 11 | 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 |
| 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 |
| 25 | 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 | 30 | 31 |
| | | | | | 12 | 12 |

| | | Mar | ch 2 | 023 | | |
|----|----|-----|------|-----|----|----|
| Su | М | Tu | W | Th | F | Sa |
| | | | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
| 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | 10 | 11 |
| 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 |
| 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 |
| 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 | 30 | 31 | |
| | | | | | 18 | 18 |

| June 2023 | | | | | | | |
|-----------|----|----|----|----|----|----|--|
| Su | М | Tu | W | Th | F | Sa | |
| | | | | 1 | 2 | 3 | |
| 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | 10 | |
| 11 | 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | |
| 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | |
| 25 | 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 | 30 | | |
| | | | | | | | |



 Employee Planning (no school for students)
 169
 Number of Student Days

 STAAR testing dates
 183
 Number of Staff Days
First and Last Day of School

| Su | М | Tu | W | Th | F | Sa |
|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|
| | | | | | | 1 |
| 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 |
| 9 | 10 | 11 | 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 |
| 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 |
| 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 |
| 30 | 31 | | | | 15 | 16 |

| | | | lary | | | |
|----|----|----|------|----|----|----|
| Su | M | Tu | W | Th | F | Sa |
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 |
| 8 | 9 | 10 | 11 | 12 | 13 | 14 |
| 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 |
| 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 | 27 | 28 |
| 29 | 30 | 31 | | | | |
| | | | | | 20 | 21 |

| | | Ар | ril 20 |)23 | | |
|----|----|----|--------|-----|----|----|
| Su | М | Tu | W | Th | F | Sa |
| | | | | | | 1 |
| 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 |
| 9 | 10 | 11 | 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 |
| 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 |
| 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 |
| 30 | | | | | 18 | 18 |

| July 2023 | | | | | | |
|-----------|----|----|----|----|----|----|
| Su | М | Tu | W | Th | F | Sa |
| | | | | | | 1 |
| 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 |
| 9 | 10 | 11 | 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 |
| 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 |
| 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 |
| 30 | 31 | | | | | |

450 Minutes per day 7:50 am - 3:20 pm 77730 Total Minutes including 1680 PD waiver

| Jan 16 | Martin Luther King Holiday - No School |
|-------------|--|
| Feb20 | President's Day Holiday - No School |
| Feb 21 | Teacher Conferences - no school |
| Mar 13-17 | Spring Break - no school |
| April 7&10 | Bad weather makeup days |
| May 25 | Last Day of School for students |
| May 29 | Memorial Day |
| 6 weeks end | 9/23, 11/11, 1/13, 2/24,4/14, 5/25 |
| 9 wheks and | 10/21, 1/13, 3/24, 5/25 |

https://www.vertex42.com/calendars/school-calendar.html

2021-2023 Faculty and Staff

Superintendent/ CEO Dr. Bruce Tabor

| Director, Business Operations Special Education Coordinator | Marcy Steward |
|---|---|
| Director of Montessori Instruction and Curriculum Executive Assistant/ Communications Coordinator School Programs Coordinator | Sandy Worcester Krist Lee Alma Lahmon |
| Student Admissions and Information Specialist Administrative Assistant | Kim Hodges Juli Harper |
| School Improvement Coordinator ASEP Supervisor | Roberta Givens |
| School Operations Generalist | Sharmayne Smith |

Current Employee Staff Contact Link

Disclaimers

Anti-Discrimination

Goodwater Montessori School does not discriminate on the basis of gender, race, skin color, age, sexual orientation, national origin, ethnicity, religion, disability, academic, athletic, or artistic ability, or the district the child would otherwise attend without regard to disability or handicapping condition, in administration or educational policies, admission and hiring policies, and other school-administered programs.

Educators are responsible for any unlawful discrimination by students under their supervision. Employees should immediately address and report any conduct by students that could be considered as discrimination. Employees may be terminated for failure to report and prevent discrimination.

Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment is any unwelcome sexual advance, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature that interferes with an individual's work performance or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive environment. All reports of sexual harassment will be investigated. Any employee found to be responsible for sexual harassment will be terminated.

Educators are responsible for any intimidating, hostile, or offensive environment created by

students under their supervision. Employees should immediately address and report any conduct by students that could be construed as sexual harassment. Employees may be terminated for failure to report and prevent sexual harassment.

Goodwater has designated the Director of Business Operations to coordinate its efforts to prevent sexual harassment and to comply with Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which incorporates and expands upon the requirements of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

Late Applications

A child who applies after the application deadline will be considered for registration should a position in his/her grade become available after the lottery is completed. Each application will be time-stamped and will be added to the end of the appropriate grade's waitlist. The school will continue to accept applications throughout the school year. Applicants will be added to their grade's waitlist if the grade is oversubscribed.

Registration Information

Step 1:

Families are notified by email of their admission to Goodwater Montessori School, and online registration information will follow with a registration packet with instructions and documents required for admission. Registration packets are due on the date specified in the admission notification and must include all required information and documentation. Goodwater Montessori School will work with families to encourage timely submission of registration packets. Parents who fail to submit documents by the stated deadline will forfeit their child's spot for the school year.

Step 2:

Additionally, parents/guardians must submit the following documents to the school registrar: Please have copies already made, if possible, in order to expedite the process.

- Copy of Parent/guardian photo ID.
- Copy of Child's birth certificate.
- Copy of Child's Social Security card.
- Immunizations records or notarized Exemption Affidavit
- Proof of residency within the geographic boundary of Williamson County, Texas, in the form of a utility bill, property tax statement, lease agreement. (If you do not have any of these documents and live with someone or on a property without that documentation, please complete the Residency Affidavit below.)

For PreK Students: Please bring documentation of your PK Eligibility Qualifier:

- Income-based PK Admission: If your family qualifies for the National School Lunch Program based on their income guidelines, please provide proof of income (current pay stub, current tax return if self-employed).
- If you qualify for SNAP/TANF, please provide your SNAP/TANF documentation.

- Active Duty Military, or Child of Military MIA, KIA, or Injured (pertinent documentation required)
- If the student does not speak or understand English, testing will be administered at a later date, so no documentation is needed upon registration.
- Family is Homeless (Survey will be given.).
- The child has ever been in the custody of DFPS (DFPS letter required).
- The parent has earned the Star of Texas Award (Certificate required).

Enrollment and Admission

Goodwater Montessori School complies with all admissions requirements as stated in Texas Education Code Sec. 12.117 and prohibits discrimination in student admission based on sex, national origin, ethnicity, religion, disability, academic, artistic or athletic ability, or the district the child would otherwise attend in accordance with Texas Education Code Sec. 12.111(a)(5). Enrolling a child in Goodwater Montessori School is a two-step process: application for admission and then enrollment in the charter school.

Application

During the designated application period, which begins in late January or early February, parents may submit an online application for their child(ren) at least three years old for grades Pre-K 3 through the eighth grade.

Application for admission is completed using the statewide common admission application, known as the Charter Student Admission Application (CSAA).

Geographic Restrictions

Students must reside within the geographic boundaries designated by the school's charter as of the first day of that child's attendance and fulfill all registration requirements. Williamson County is the geographic boundary for Goodwater Montessori.

Minimum Age Requirements

All students must be at least as old as the following appropriate age for their grade by September 1 of each school year:

| Grade | Age |
|-------|-----|
| PK3 | 3 |
| PK4 | 4 |
| KG | 5 |
| 1st | 6 |
| 2nd | 7 |

| 3rd | 8 |
|-----|----|
| 4th | 9 |
| 5th | 10 |
| 6th | 11 |
| 7th | 12 |
| 8th | 13 |

Lottery for Grades K-8

When any grade is over-subscribed (when there are more applicants than spaces) at the end of the application period, Goodwater Montessori School will conduct an electronic lottery per State of Texas guidelines until all openings are filled. The following are exempt from the lottery if applications are submitted during the designated application period:

- 1. Children of Goodwater Montessori School staff members
- 2. Siblings of Goodwater Montessori School students already admitted or attending the school

Children not selected for immediate placement will be placed on a waitlist according to their number in the lottery process.

Families are notified by email of their admission to Goodwater Montessori School. Registration packets are due on the date specified in the registration notification and must include all required information and documentation. Goodwater Montessori School will work with families to encourage timely submission of registration packets. Parents who fail to submit documents by the stated deadline may forfeit their child's spot in the admissions lottery for the school year.

Prekindergarten Admissions

Prekindergarten applicants who have applied by the end of the application period who are eligible for the State Prekindergarten Program will have priority in admission. If there are additional Prekindergarten spaces, they will be filled by non-eligible students. To be eligible for the State Prekindergarten Program, a child must meet the geographic boundary and minimum age requirements, **and** meet at least one of the following criteria:

- Child is unable to speak and comprehend the English language
- Child is educationally disadvantaged
- Child is homeless (as defined by 42 USC, §11434a)
- Child of an active duty member of the United States military
- Child of a member of the United States military who was injured or killed while serving on active duty
- The child is or has ever been in the conservatorship of the Texas Department of Family and Protective Services (foster care) following an adversary hearing held as provided by Family Code §262.201 or has been in foster care in another state or territory, but currently lives in Texas
- Child of a person eligible for the Star of Texas Award as a peace officer, a firefighter, or an emergency medical first responder

If there are more Prekindergarten student applications than spaces, all applicants will be placed in a lottery and randomly selected per State of Texas guidelines. Selected students will be invited to submit eligibility documentation as described under "Registration Information," below.

Eligible students will be offered the opportunity to enroll if space is available. If space is not available, eligible students will be placed on a waitlist. Ineligible students will be offered the opportunity to enroll after all eligible student applicants have been offered enrollment. If space is not available, ineligible students will be placed on a waitlist behind any students eligible for the State Prekindergarten Program.

Any Prekindergarten applications received after the application period will be placed on the waitlist in the order in which they were received, with eligible PreK students receiving priority.

Prekindergarten children of staff members and siblings of students already admitted or attending Goodwater Montessori School are exempt from the lottery if applications are submitted during the designated application period. A small percentage of Goodwater Montessori School's Prekindergarten population may be comprised of children of staff and siblings of current students who are ineligible for the State Prekindergarten Program. These applicants will be admitted in the order applications are received. If the school determines that a small percentage of Prekindergarten enrollment has already been filled with staff member children and siblings of current students, applications that would otherwise be exempt will be placed in the lottery along with all other applications.

Prekindergarten students who are not eligible for the State Prekindergarten Program will be offered Prekindergarten on a tuition basis.

Waitlist

Goodwater Montessori School strives to maintain full and vital classrooms at all times. In the case of grade oversubscription, an electronic waitlist will be maintained by the school registrar in partnership with the school's software provider. As positions become available throughout the year (in the event of a student withdrawal), children occupying the next position in their grade's waitlist will be notified and instructed to submit a registration packet.

Late Applications

A child who applies after the application deadline will be considered for registration should a position in his/her grade become available after the lottery is completed. Each application will be time-stamped and will be added to the end of the appropriate grade's waitlist. The school will continue to accept applications throughout the school year. Applicants will be added to their

grade's waitlist if the grade is oversubscribed.

Registration Information

Step 1:

Families are notified by email of their admission to Goodwater Montessori School, and online registration information will follow with a registration packet with instructions and documents required for admission. Registration packets are due on the date specified in the admission notification and must include all required information and documentation. Goodwater Montessori School will work with families to encourage timely submission of registration packets. Parents who fail to submit documents by the stated deadline will forfeit their child's spot for the school year.

Step 2:

Additionally, parents/guardians must submit the following documents to the school registrar: Please have copies already made, if possible, in order to expedite the process.

- Copy of Parent/guardian photo ID.
- Copy of Child's birth certificate.
- Copy of Child's Social Security card.
- Immunizations records or notarized Exemption Affidavit
- Proof of residency within the geographic boundary of Williamson County, Texas, in the form of a utility bill, property tax statement, lease agreement. (If you do not have any of these documents and live with someone or on a property without that documentation, please complete the Residency Affidavit below.)

For Prekindergarten Students: Please bring documentation of your Eligibility Qualifier:

- Income-based PK Admission: If your family qualifies for the National School Lunch Program based on their income guidelines, please provide proof of income (current pay stub, current tax return if self-employed).
- If you qualify for SNAP/TANF, please provide your SNAP/TANF documentation.
- Active Duty Military, or Child of Military MIA, KIA, or Injured (pertinent documentation required)
- If the student does not speak or understand English, testing will be administered at a later date, so no documentation is needed upon registration.
- Family is Homeless (Survey will be given.).
- The child has ever been in the custody of DFPS (DFPS letter required).
- The parent has earned the Star of Texas Award (Certificate required).

This process does not qualify your students for the Free/Reduced Lunch Program at Goodwater. That application will be distributed in late July and confirmed once the Lunch Application is received by the school.

Returning Students

Students returning to Goodwater Montessori School must complete a recommitment form in

early spring to ensure continued enrollment. The form will be distributed to families early in the Spring semester.

Exclusion from Admission

Goodwater Montessori School reserves the right to exclude from admission a student who has a documented history of a criminal offense, a juvenile court adjudication, or discipline problems under Texas Education Code Sec. 12.111(a)(5) Subchapter A, Chapter 37. The Superintendent/ CEO, Board President, Lead Guide, and/or Special Needs Teacher (where applicable) and ESL Specialist (where applicable) will review documented cases of violations under TEC Sec. 12.111(a)(5) Subchapter Chapter 37 to determine an applicant's eligibility for admission.

Re-Enrollment

Former Goodwater Montessori School students may re-enroll at any time provided a position in the appropriate grade/age is available. If a position is not available, the student will be placed on the waitlist for the current year, and/or the former student may participate in the following year's application and registration process.

Transfers

Goodwater Montessori School will not accept transfers from outside its geographic area.

Withdrawal

The parent/guardian is required to complete school withdrawal paperwork prior to the day of withdrawal of their child from Goodwater Montessori School and also clear any library book fees prior to withdrawal.

Attendance

The School Day starts at 7:50 a.m. daily. The School Day ends at 3:20 p.m. daily.

Parents are expected to ensure the on-time arrival and departure of their students. A late fee will be charged when students are left at school after 3:45 pm. Fee information: \$1 for every minute after 3:45 pm.

Compulsory Attendance Rules

Mandatory attendance for students who are at least six years old as of September 1 of the applicable school year is required by state law Texas Education Code 25.085. The law requires

a student to attend public school until the student's 18th birthday unless the student is exempt under 25.086 of the Texas Education Code. This requirement is enforced through Texas Education Code 25.093 and 25.094. According to the Texas Education Code, students must be present at least 90 percent of the school days unless otherwise exempted by the administrators.

Please note: The school is funded based on the daily attendance of each student. Charter schools receive less funding per student than traditional public schools; therefore, the financial stability of Goodwater Montessori School is directly affected by your child's regular attendance.

Attendance will be taken daily at 10 a.m.

Excessive Absences

In the event of 5 or more absences in a single semester, a notification will be sent to the parents/guardians with a warning given.

In the event of 10 or more absences in the school year, an attendance committee meeting will be held. The student may be considered for dismissal from Goodwater Montessori School to their home campus. This policy applies to all students ages PreK to 8^h grade. To support the strength of the educational environment and to ensure the best attendance, parents are encouraged to schedule routine medical and dental appointments after school hours or after 10 a.m. when attendance is taken.

Please notify the school of absence by emailing attendance@goodwatermontessori.org and the student's guide.

Excused Absences

An absence may be considered excused for the following reasons:

- Illness. A child who is ill should not be sent to school since this may cause the child's condition to worsen and may expose other children to the child's illness. A student who has a temperature of 100° F or greater or who has been vomiting within the past 24 hours should stay home. The child should have a normal temperature for 24 hours before returning to school. After three days of an absence due to illness, parent must provide a note from the doctor to return.
- Medical or Dental Appointment. Parents are encouraged to schedule non-illness medical or dental appointments during after-school hours. Appointments made during school hours will require a note from the medical provider for students to be considered excused. The note must be turned in within one school day of the return of the student to school.
- Religious Observance. Prior to the day of observance, the family must submit a written request to the administration for the absence to be considered excused. The guide and family will plan to complete all missed work, if applicable.
- Death in the Family. In the event of a death in the family, students will be granted an excused absence, the length of which will be determined in consultation with the school administration.
- Other necessary or justifiable reasons as excused by the school administration

Unexcused Absences

Unexcused absences are any absences that have not been excused as defined above and outlined by the Texas Education Agency. To maintain their educational progress, students will need to participate in any missed lessons or other classroom work as necessary.

Tardiness

Tardiness is disruptive to the learning environment and can have a negative impact on all of the students. Parents and students are together responsible for arriving at school on time.

Though Montessori enables students to work independently, lessons and work are planned to begin at 7:50 a.m. Students who arrive late miss critical information and often disrupt the work of others.

- Primary students who arrive after 7:50 a.m. are tardy, and the parent/guardian must walk with the student to the office. Primary doors close at 7:50 a.m.
- All students who arrive after 7:50 a.m. parents must check their student in at the office. The student will be counted as tardy and be allowed to proceed to class.

Excessive Tardiness

- Unexcused tardies are cumulative for the semester.
- Failure to be in class on time as outlined above will result in a recorded tardy.
- Three tardies result in one unexcused absence and a notice to the parent/guardian.
- Six tardies result in two unexcused absences and a parent/guardian conference.
- Ten tardies result in three unexcused absences and the development of an arrival plan between the administration and parent/guardian.

Truancy

Any student who leaves school before dismissal time must be checked out by their parents in the school office. Students whose parents fail to check out will be considered truant. Students will not receive credit for days in which they are truant. Parents will be notified of their child's truancy, pick-up, and a meeting will be requested by the administration with the goal of preventing further truancy.

Three such offenses may result in the student being removed from Goodwater Montessori School.

Arrival and Dismissal

Arrival: Children may be dropped off beginning at 7:30 a.m. The school is not staffed to care for children any earlier than this time.

Dismissal: Dismissal time is at 3:20 p.m. daily. Children must be picked up by 3:30 p.m. unless they are enrolled in the After-School program. Children who are picked up more than 15 minutes after dismissal will be assessed a fee. Fee information: \$1 for every minute after 3:30 PM

Early Departure From School

All students are required to remain at school until the end of the day. Early departure should be utilized only for illness and necessary medical appointments. Early pick-up of students 30 minutes prior to dismissal is not permitted, except in the case of a family emergency. In this case, the parent/guardian shall contact the office prior to arrival on campus.

After-School Enrichment Program

Goodwater offers an Afterschool Enrichment Program from dismissal until 6 p.m. for a fee. Registration will occur online at <u>www.goodwatermontessori.org</u>. Parents/Caregivers of students who are not picked up by 6:00 pm will be accessed at a \$1.00 per minute fee.

Use of Facilities Before and After School

Certain areas of the school will be accessible before and after school for a variety of school-approved activities. Students are required to remain in designated areas and with the

guide or activity sponsor at all times. Students will not be permitted to go to any other parts of the building unless otherwise given permission by the guide or sponsor.

Arrival and Dismissal Procedures

The Montessori Curriculum teaches Grace and Courtesy. Please serve as models of Grace of Courtesy to your children during arrival and dismissal. Thank you.

Our procedures were determined based on the following:

- 1. Safety for our students and staff
- 2. Consideration for our school neighbors and fellow drivers
- 3. Ease of understanding for parents
- At dismissal, all students must be picked up by 3:45 PM (unless the dismissal line is not finished until after that time.)
- Please do not use your cell phones while dropping off your children. Do not use cell phones after the students have been dismissed.
- Please follow the direction of all staff and volunteers directing traffic and assisting students.
- Please leave the crosswalks clear. Do not stop on them. Please make a note of all crosswalks on the school grounds. Staff will help the students stay safe, but the drivers must as well.
- Please pull close to the car in front of you, so fewer cars will be potentially blocking Stadium Drive.
- Please assist students who may need help getting out of the vehicle.
- Please make sure students get out of the vehicle on the driver side.
- Please observe speed limit signs. The speed limit is 10 MPH on school grounds.
- Please follow all traffic signs on school grounds.
- You must have a pickup card on display to pick up your students
- Please do not park and walk up to pick up your students from the dismissal area.

Goodwater will provide detailed instructions and maps for all families for arrival and dismissal procedures before the school year begins. Families are expected to learn, understand, and follow the procedures each school day.

Parent and Guardian Involvement

Communication

Goodwater Montessori School will communicate with parents in person and via telephone and email, and through mass methods, including its website, e-newsletter, social media, and events and texts (for which parents/guardians have opted-in.).

Parent – Guide/Staff Communication

All Goodwater staff have school email addresses for official school communication and will respond to questions within 24 hours M-F.

Topics relating to student behavior, academic performance, teaching methods, subject content, policy or administrative decisions, and confidential matters (such as special education needs, learning disabilities, and discipline) shall occur via face-to-face meetings, Zoom, email, or phone conversations. The meetings will occur in a timely fashion.

The Goodwater 2021-2022 school calendar includes two Parent Conference Days. Parents are encouraged to schedule appointments on these days to discuss their child's progress with their child's guide.

Prohibited Forms of Communication

Guides and staff are prohibited from using personal email accounts, personal social media accounts, or third-party websites to communicate with parents about school-related matters.

Additionally, guides and staff are prohibited from using personal email accounts, personal social media accounts, or third-party websites to communicate with students on any topic.

Official school social media sites may be used by authorized personnel to communicate general school news and information.

We urge parents and guardians to please contact the school with their specific questions or concerns about school policy or procedures before asking them through social media.

Parent Lunch with Student

Parents should not plan on having lunch with their children, except on designated special events announced in advance.

Audio and Visual Recording and Photography

Recording or photographing meetings with guides or staff is prohibited without the prior consent of all parties. If all parties consent, recordings must include an opening statement that consent has been given and approved by each party. No person is allowed to video or audio record in any learning environment without permission from the guide and/or superintendent.

Parents/guardians and students may not photograph other students in the school without written permission from the Superintendent/CEO.

Solicitation of Goods and Services

Solicitation of goods and services is prohibited on school property except during school-sanctioned events or for the benefit of the school or other charitable efforts. No printed solicitation material may be distributed by staff, guides, or parents through the school unless cleared by the Administration office (Kristi Lee). All business relationships with the school must be made through the Administration office. Delivery of goods and services purchased privately outside of the school must be made outside of school property and not through students.

Party Invitations

Guides are not permitted to distribute student party invitations. Please do not send your students to school with party invitations.

Volunteer Opportunities

Volunteers contribute to the vitality of Goodwater, and parents are encouraged to contribute to the school in a variety of ways. Examples are classroom enrichment, field trip chaperones, fundraising, library, gardening, lunch assistance, and staff appreciation.

School Safety and Security

Goodwater Montessori School takes the safety of students and staff very seriously. The administration is continually in touch with law enforcement agencies and other organizations to create and update its best practices in all areas of school and student safety.

Visits & Tours

Due to COVID-19, school visits and tours are limited to approval by the Administration office. Please contact the Administration office for additional details.

All visitors, including parents/guardians, **must check in with the school office prior to visiting any school area.** Visitors must present a photo ID and be checked in through the Raptor Security System that scans driver's licenses or state-issued IDs and performs criminal background checks. All visitors must complete a successful check-in to be allowed entry to the school beyond the foyer. Volunteers who work with children will be required to undergo an additional background check.

For purposes of safety, confidentiality, and minimal disruption, parents/guardians and visitors are permitted in the classrooms only with prior coordination and approval through the administrative office and guide. Parents should schedule a time to meet with guides outside of the instructional day.

Goodwater will designate dates on which prospective parents may make an appointment to tour the school. Interested parents should contact the office at registrar@goodwatermontessori.org for the schedule of school tour dates.

Weather

In the event of threatening weather conditions, Goodwater Montessori School will take all necessary emergency precautions. Delayed openings or school closings will be posted on the school's website and Facebook page. Students will not go outside when the wind chill is 38 degrees or below, or the heat index is 100 degrees or above.

Evacuation, Weather, and Emergency Drills

Evacuation, Weather, and Emergency drills (including intruder drills), under the supervision of the Georgetown Fire Department and the Georgetown Police Department, are conducted throughout the school year. Students, staff, and visitors are expected to:

- 1. Follow guide/staff instructions.
- 2. Walk quietly and quickly to the designated area(s).
- 3. Be familiar with directions posted near each exit.

Field Trips

Children may be required to wear the Goodwater logo shirt to help identify our students when they are away from school. These trips will be announced in time for parents to purchase a school t-shirt from the office.

Dress Code

The intent of Goodwater's dress code is to provide a safe and secure learning environment where students can concentrate on their work without focusing on external appearances. A dress code helps to reduce distractions, reflect standards and expectations, instill a sense of community, ensure comfort and free movement, and level economic distinctions.

When a student comes to school wearing clothing in violation of the Dress Code, parents will be notified of the issue, not the student.

Students are expected to wear clothing that is clean, well-fitting, weather-appropriate, worn correctly, and free of excessive rips and/or holes. Commercial cartoon characters are prohibited on any clothing item and lunch box/bag. Wearing the Goodwater t-shirt is encouraged. These shirts will be sold in the school office at a reasonable price.

Tops

Tops can be t-shirts or a collared style with long or short sleeves and in any solid color, plaid, or print. Tank tops must have three finger-width (fingers of the wearer) shoulder straps and not have an extra-wide arm opening. Shirts and outerwear may not display:

- Political, offensive, or religious messaging
- Hoodies can be worn at school, but the Hood portion cannot be on the head except outdoors

Bottoms

Students may wear pants, shorts, skirts, skorts, dresses, jumpers, or capris. Tights, leggings, or shorts should be worn underneath skirts, dresses, and jumpers. Pants and shorts can be denim, khaki, cotton print or plaid, or sweatpants. The bottom edge of bottom pieces must not be higher than the wearer's fingertips, and undergarments must not be visible.

Outdoor Footwear

Footwear must be closed-toe shoes that children can put on/take off independently and are designed for active play. Shoes must be tied or fastened, cover the foot, and be worn with socks or tights. The following types of outdoor footwear are prohibited:

- Sandals, and flip-flops, "Crocs," or other backless styles.
- Shoes that light up or make sounds or that have dressy heels, wedges, or wheels.

Indoor Footwear

We are not using two sets of footwear at school this year.

Outerwear & Hats

Outerwear should be consistent with the weather. Students will go outside with their communities for recess daily, so please be sure they have dressed appropriately. Appropriate rainwear is a raincoat or poncho with a hood, and students should not bring umbrellas to school. Children should have warm hats on cold days and brimmed hats for sun protection on hot days. Please label all outerwear and hats with sharpies or stickers.

Miscellaneous

- o Students may not bring toys from home to school, including stuffed animals or electronic games.
- o Backpacks are unnecessary; however, if a student wants to bring a backpack it must be clear

Technology in the Classroom: Responsible Use Policy

Goodwater Montessori Public Charter School provides information technology resources for both educational and administrative purposes. The aim of this Responsible Use Policy is to ensure that students will benefit from learning opportunities offered by the school's Internet resources in a safe and effective manner. Internet use and access are considered a school resource and privilege. The school employs a number of strategies to maximize learning opportunities and reduce risks associated with Internet access. These strategies are as follows:

- Internet sessions will always be approved beforehand and supervised by a guide or classroom assistant.
- The school will regularly monitor pupils' internet use. Students and staff will be provided with training in the area of internet safety.
- Uploading and downloading of non-approved software will not be permitted.
- Virus protection software will be used and updated on a regular basis.
- The use of digital storage media (CDs, flash drives, etc.) in school requires the permission of a guide or classroom assistant.
- Students will treat others with respect in all online use.

Internet Use

- Students will use the internet for educational purposes only during class time, and all websites will be vetted by the class guide or classroom assistant.
- Students will not intentionally visit Internet sites that contain obscene, illegal, hateful, racist, or otherwise objectionable materials.
- Students will report accidental accessing of inappropriate materials.
- Students will not copy information into assignments and fail to acknowledge the source (plagiarism and copyright infringement).
- Students will never disclose or publicize personal information in online use.
- Students may not download materials or images not relevant to classwork.
- Students will be aware that any usage, including distributing or receiving information, school-related or personal, may be monitored for unusual activity, security, and/or network management reasons.

Email /Google Drive/Internet Chat

- Students may use classroom email accounts only, under supervision by or with permission from the class guide or classroom assistant.
- Students with personal email accounts may not access these accounts at school. The classroom email address is to be used for educational purposes only.
- The classroom email address is the property of Goodwater Montessori School. All content will be monitored by school staff.
- If a child receives an inappropriate email, he/she should inform the class guide, or classroom assistant, and parent/guardian.
- Students will not send any material that is illegal, obscene, defamatory, or that is intended to annoy, embarrass, or intimidate another person.
- Students will not reveal their own or other people's personal details, such as addresses or telephone numbers, photos, or passwords.
- Students will never arrange a face-to-face meeting with someone they only know through emails or the internet.

Social Media

- Students with personal social media accounts may not access these accounts at school.
- Guides and staff are prohibited from using personal email accounts, personal social media accounts, or third-party websites to communicate with students.
- The internet has become a two-way communication system for the school and the wider community. Social media may be used by the school administration to communicate with parents and also for parents to communicate with the school.

Personal Electronics

- Primary students may not bring personal electronic devices to school for any reason.
- Goodwater Montessori discourages Elementary and Adolescent students from bringing personal electronics to school. Students who bring personal electronics to school must keep them stored away. If they need to use them, they must ask an

adult in the community or in the office.

- Any misuse of personal electronics as determined by school staff will result in the confiscation of the device by staff until the end of the school day, and parents must come to the office to collect the device.
- Parents who need to contact their child during the school day should call the school office, 512-931-3560.

Food Services and Nutrition

Goodwater promotes healthy food and nutrition to all school faculty, staff, parents, and students.

Breakfast

Lunch

Parents may purchase a hot lunch for their child or send a lunch from home. To view menus and order meals, go to our website, www.goodwatermontessori.org, under Important Information for our Families, Food Service.

Some families can qualify for free or reduced-price meals. Parents should contact the school registrar for the information. Eligibility is based upon several factors:

- Income Children can get free or reduced-price meals if a household's gross income is within the limits described in the Federal Income Eligibility Guidelines.
- Special Assistance Program Participants Children in households receiving benefits from Supplemental Nutrition.
- Foster Care Foster children who are under the legal responsibility of a foster care agency or court are eligible for free meals.
- Homeless, Runaway, and Migrant Children who meet the definition of homeless, runaway, or migrant qualify for free meals. If you haven't been told about a child's status as homeless, runaway, or migrant, or you feel a child may qualify for one of these programs, please contact the school registrar for the information.

Goodwater follows the guidelines set forth by the U. S. Department of Agriculture and Texas Department of Agriculture's Child Nutrition Program, actively ensuring that meals served on campus meet or exceed health guidelines for all students.

| FMNV | FMNV is Foods of Minimal Nutritional Value as defined by the U. S. Department of Agriculture and the Texas Department of Agriculture. These types of foods will not be served to students on campus. Food items served and sold on campus shall, to the extent possible, be prepared from fresh ingredients. |
|------------------|---|
| FRIED FOOD | Foods that have been deep fat fried, pre-fried, flash-fried, or par-fried will not be served to students. |
| FRUIT/VEGETABLES | Must be offered daily on all points of service and be fresh whenever possible. Frozen or canned fruits will be packaged in natural juice or water whenever possible. |
| BEVERAGES | Only unflavored white milk, unflavored water, or 100% juice will be served. Although 100% juices may be a source of vitamins, current research recommends limiting juice consumption due to its high sugar content. Electrolyte |

| | replacement beverages (sports drinks) or carbonated sugary beverages will not be served or sold to students. |
|---|--|
| NON-FOOD INGREDIENTS | Students will not be served foods containing any non-food ingredients. These ingredients include but are not limited to artificial food colorings, artificial flavors, and artificial fats (trans-fats). |
| FOODS USED FOR INSTRUCTIONAL PURPOSES | Lesson plans for instructional use of foods shall be submitted to the campus administrator for permission in advance of all food preparation. In the event that a learning opportunity in the classroom involves food or the preparation of food, school staff will appropriately accommodate the needs of students with specific allergies so that all may participate. |

The following guidelines apply to food brought from home.

| LUNCHES BROUGHT FROM HOME | To protect children with serious nut allergies, Classrooms that have students with nut allergies will be designated as Nut-free classrooms. It is strongly recommended that lunches brought from home not contain junk foods or high sugar desserts. If these items must be sent in a student's lunch, these types of items should be limited to very small portions so as not to detract from the child eating the healthier portions of the meal. Students shall not bring carbonated beverages to school. Goodwater does not offer access to microwave ovens to heat lunches brought from home. |
|---------------------------------|--|
| SNACKS BROUGHT FROM HOME | To protect children with serious nut allergies, Classrooms that have students with nut allergies will be designated as Nut-free classrooms. It is strongly recommended that snacks be healthy. They should be in single-size servings and not include items with high sugar content. Also, because students often continue working on classroom assignments while having their daily snacks, messy snacks should be avoided. |
| FAST FOOD | Parents/guardians are strongly discouraged from bringing fast food products in for students during school hours, especially those that contain foods of minimal nutritional value, except under extenuating circumstances. In these cases, fast food brought to school will be removed from the original packaging and placed into a lunch sack at the school office before being delivered to the student. Parents/guardians may NOT bring carbonated beverages (sodas) with the meals. |

Competitive Foods

Competitive foods are defined as any food or beverage sold or made available to students that are not defined in the chart above. They are called competitive foods because they compete with these foods. Parents and children may not think of them as competitive foods; they may think of these foods as "snacks and drinks" consumed outside of the regular meals provided by the school. These foods will not be allowed for sale on the campus or as part of the after-school program.

Foods and beverages provided during field trips, school events, or as part of fundraisers should follow these guidelines; however, it may be reasonable to deviate from these standards on limited and specific occasions with the prior approval of the school administration.

Goodwater Montessori School may allow alternative meals to be sold to students in conjunction with meals made available by the school food service department, i.e., food sold for fundraising purposes, up to three times per year, as allowed by the state.

Food Provided to Students by Parents

No food of any kind should be sent to school to be handed out to students in the classroom except for when food has been requested for a class or school activity by the classroom guide or school administration (such as a cultural lunch). Unsolicited food sent from home will not be distributed and will be returned to the parent/guardian.

Birthday and Classroom Parties

Traditional birthday parties are not held during the school day. Guides will recognize/celebrate student birthdays as appropriate for their individual classrooms. No food, sweet treats, candy, or beverage items of any kind are allowed into the school as part of a student's birthday celebration. Foods sent from home for this purpose will not be distributed and will be returned to the parent/guardian. This is done in consideration of all children, including those that have food allergies and sensitivities.

Understanding that children enjoy having birthday recognition, parents/guardians are encouraged to consider alternatives such as:

- a) Allowing your child to choose a book to donate to the school library or to his/her classroom.
- b) Hand out non-food and non-candy treats such as pencils and erasers.
- c) Donate needed "wish list" items to your classroom (based on the needs of the guide).
- d) Donate playground/recess equipment, such as a soccer ball.

e) Make a financial donation to the school.

School-Sponsored Classroom Parties

Parents are encouraged to participate in parties for students on pre-designated school holidays or specific events in pre-arrangement with the guides and school staff.

Classroom parties should primarily focus on activities and camaraderie rather than food. With this philosophy in mind, parents are asked to only bring food items that are specifically requested by the guide. Foods will be coordinated through the guides in advance of the party, and all "extra" food will be returned. It is strongly suggested that food choices be limited to only one dessert or sweet treat item. Other foods that can be brought to the classroom upon guide approval can include fruits and vegetables, low sugar snacks, baked (not fried) items, and overall healthy foods.

No candy is allowed in the classroom. This includes Valentine's Day. No candy should be attached to Valentine cards exchanged by students.

School-Wide Celebrations

Goodwater Montessori will hold three school-wide celebrations each year:

- Winter Celebration
- Valentine's Day
- End of The Year

Our school also recognizes other holidays.

Health Guidelines

Goodwater Montessori School staff provides care when a child is sick or requires first aid, performs required vision and hearing screening, and reviews immunization records as required by State law. Parents should keep the school administration and the classroom guide(s) informed of their child's health needs so that the school can provide the best possible care for each student.

Food Allergies

The health and safety of all students are a top priority. The school will work diligently to accommodate food allergies and teach students how to advocate for themselves and function in a communal eating environment. Students without food allergies will also receive the education and opportunities necessary to help facilitate the safety of their classmates and community. General food allergy guidelines are:

- a) Learning opportunities that include the preparation of food will accommodate the specific allergies of those children in the classroom so that all may fully participate.
- b) In accordance with Texas state policy, parents may not distribute food to other people's children at any time.
- c) Sharing of food among students is prohibited.
- d) Goodwater Montessori School will work with individual students with food allergies and their parents/guardians to create individual allergy management plans.

Goodwater recognizes the vulnerability of children with anaphylactic food allergies and, as such, denotes classrooms that have students with NUT ALLERGIES will be a "NUT FREE."

Water

Hydrating the body and the brain is extremely important. Goodwater Montessori School recognizes that water intake is important to health, especially in the Texas climate. For this reason, students will have regular access to fresh drinking water throughout the day. Students should bring a capped container of drinking water from home for consumption in the classroom and on the playground (the container must be labeled with the student's first and last name). Goodwater Montessori School encourages the use of only reusable water containers rather than disposable plastic water bottles.

Medication

When students must take medication at school, either by a physician's order or by parent or guardian request, the following procedures must be observed:

- 1. Medication must be delivered to the appropriate administrative staff by parent or guardian in the original prescription bottle or over-the-counter container. Students are not allowed to bring medication to school (including cough drops).
- A Goodwater School Medication Consent Form must be completed and signed by the parent or guardian prior to dispensing any medication, either prescription or non-prescription. A new form is required each school year. No medication will be dispensed without parent or guardian consent.
- 3. The prescription label must have the student's name, current date, name of the medication, dosage, and the time to be given.
- 4. If dosages should change while the child is on prescription medication, such changes are provided to school staff from the doctor, and a new prescription bottle must be provided with the changes listed. A new consent form must be completed prior to the new dose being administered. Changes will be made with a doctor's authorization only.
- 5. The dosage of non-prescription medication must be within the manufacturer's recommendation as printed on the label.
- 6. Students may not carry prescription or non-prescription medicine to administer to themselves without a doctor's order on file in the office. This determination is made by the physician, taking into account student maturity level, level of understanding of self- administration. The sharing of any medication between students is strictly prohibited.

This includes vitamins and health supplements. Inhalers and Epi-Pens may be carried by the students with parental consent and a doctor's order. Medicines brought to school and not meeting necessary requirements will not be dispensed by any school employee and will be kept in the administrative office until a parent or guardian verifies the medicine in written form and follows the procedure or takes it home.

7. Only Administrative staff may keep and administer medication on field trips.

Illness and Injuries

Parents are asked to keep their child at home if that student has any communicable illness, is vomiting, or if they are running a fever of 100° F or higher. Students should be fever-free without fever-reducing medicine for 24 hours before returning to school.

The school will contact parents directly in the event of any serious injuries or medical emergencies. Please ensure that the school is kept informed of any changes of contact telephone numbers so that this service remains efficient.

All teaching and administrative staff will have records of emergency medical conditions for students. With young children, it is very helpful to keep in close contact with the school staff and classroom teachers about any health problems your child has, however slight they may seem. Even small health concerns can affect a student's behavior or performance, and it is helpful to staff to be aware of any background information, which may help to better serve your child.

In the event of a confirmed, contagious, reportable disease, a letter of notification will be sent to the student's classroom parents.

Parents should notify the school staff of any confirmed, contagious diseases, including COVD-19, flu, strep throat, mono, chickenpox, staph, impetigo, pink eye, giardia, hand, foot, and mouth disease, and salmonella.

Allergies

Due to the serious and potentially life-threatening situations that can arise due to asthma and allergies (including food allergies), it is crucial that the school staff be notified of these conditions. Please refer to the paragraph on 'Medication' found in this section of the handbook for specific instructions should medications be necessary.

Immunizations

Texas law requires students to be immunized against certain vaccine-preventable diseases. In order for your student to attend school, all required immunizations must be obtained, or a valid exemption must be on file. Information about required immunizations for students can be obtained in the office or on the website.

Students non-compliant with vaccines or those having invalid exemptions will be excluded from school per law.

Nuisance Diseases

Nuisance diseases such as scabies, head lice (pediculosis), ringworm of the scalp, and impetigo are highly contagious and can cause a negative impact in the school setting. Students known to have live head lice will need to be picked up from school and may return to school after being treated with valid lice treatment. Letters will be sent home to notify parents if a student in the classroom is verified as having live lice. A parent should contact the school health provider if their child has had active, live head lice. All communication regarding head lice will be kept confidential.

STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT

Policy Statement and Purpose

The Student Code of Conduct is Goodwater Montessori School's response to the requirements of the Texas Education Code. The law requires schools to define misconduct that may or must result in a range of specific disciplinary consequences, including suspension or expulsion from school.

Goodwater Montessori School promotes values and has behavioral expectations that are in keeping with its Mission and Vision.

All students, parents, guides, and staff have the right to be safe and feel safe in their school community. With this right comes the responsibility to be law-abiding citizens and to be accountable for actions that intimidate or put at risk the safety of others or oneself. This includes behavior that may be considered intentionally anti-social.

For the purpose of this Code of Conduct, "school community" comprises individuals involved in Goodwater Montessori day-to-day operations — the administration, guides, staff, students, parents, guardians, step-parents, relatives, friends, supporters, caregivers, and board; and also invitees of the school for the purpose of visiting, viewing, participating, supporting or being present for any official activity, whether learning or social, held by or for the benefit of the school and its students.

This Student Code of Conduct sets clear standards for the behavior expected of members of the school community. It specifies the consequences for any members of the school community who do not comply with those standards of behavior, whether those persons are on the school campus, in transit to, or at another location for the purpose of any school-authorized events or activities. This Student Code of Conduct is intended to provide members of the school community with guidelines for the effective development of positive relationships within the school community and to assist in promoting the values that are in keeping with the school's Mission. This document is a guide for all members of the school community about acceptable standards of behavior in the school environment or when attending any official, learning or social, function, or activity relating to the school or in any location at which the school is represented.

Montessori Behavior Background

Dr. Maria Montessori integrated a code of conduct into her curriculum, emphasizing grace and courtesy. Behavior in a Montessori classroom is no different in our homes or the social

community — respect and care for each other, our environment, and ourselves. The following are the principles that provide the framework for the Goodwater Montessori School Student Code of Conduct:

HONESTY — Honesty is the basic expectation at Goodwater Montessori School. Trust, which grows from honesty, is essential to relationships in the school community. Truthfulness and honesty can sometimes be difficult to maintain; however, honesty is most valued in our students.

KINDNESS — We expect that all Goodwater Montessori School students will treat others with consideration at all times. Students' treatment of each other must be respectful whether or not an adult is present. Goodwater Montessori expects students, faculty, and parents to accept, tolerate, and welcome differences and diversity.

DISCIPLINE — The Montessori approach to appropriate conduct is based on self-discipline. We understand that students test limits and that they will have challenges. We believe that for a child who is supported in learning self-awareness and honesty, his or her ability to communicate is a strong first step in accepting responsibility for inappropriate behavior or mistakes.

Standards of Behavior

Every student at Goodwater Montessori School has the right to learn and thrive in an atmosphere that is conducive to academic achievement and social growth. Any behavior by a student that threatens to disrupt the learning process or pose a danger to others is unacceptable. In the event, a student is unable to comply with classroom rules and appropriate behavior, the student will be liable for breach of conduct and subject to the actions outlined in Section 7 of this document. With this in mind:

- All members of the school community are to be treated with respect and dignity.
- Responsible citizenship involves appropriate participation in the civic life of the school community. Active and engaged members are aware of their rights, and, more importantly, they accept responsibility for protecting their rights and the rights of others.
- Members of the school community are expected to use non-violent means to resolve any conflict.
- Insults, disrespect, bullying, taunting, name-calling, verbal threats, and physical acts disrupt learning and teaching in the school community and are a direct contradiction to the school's Mission and Values. Members of the school community have a responsibility to maintain an environment where conflict and difference can be addressed in a manner characterized by respect and civility to all others.

All members of the school community are expected to behave with respect, civility, and in the manner of a responsible citizen. This means all school community members must:

- Respect all applicable Federal and State laws. The Superintendent/ CEO will report crimes as required by law and may contact local law enforcement regarding suspected criminal activity.
- Demonstrate honesty and integrity.
- Respect differences in people, their ideas, and opinions.
- Treat one another with dignity and respect at all times, and especially when there is a disagreement.
- Respect and treat others fairly, regardless of their disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes as set forth in State and Federal law.
- Respect the legal and moral rights of others.
- Show proper care and regard for school property and the property of others.
- Take appropriate measures to help those in need.
- Respect persons who are in a position of authority.
- Respect the need of others to work in an environment of learning and teaching.

Authority and Jurisdiction

School rules and the authority of Goodwater Montessori School to administer discipline apply whenever the interest of the school is involved, on or off school grounds, in conjunction with or independent of classes and school-sponsored activities. The school has disciplinary authority over a student:

- 1. Upon entering school property
- 2. While the student is in attendance at any school-related activity, regardless of time or location
- 3. For any school-related misconduct, regardless of time or location.
- 4. When retaliation against a school employee or volunteer occurs or is threatened, regardless of time or location.
- 5. When criminal mischief is committed on or off school property or at a school-related event
- 6. For certain offenses committed within 300 feet of school property
- 7. When the student commits a felony, as specified by Texas Education Code

Goodwater Montessori School has the right to search a student's belongings when there is reasonable cause to believe that they contain prohibited articles or materials. The Superintendent/CEO will report crimes as required by law and will call local law enforcement when the Superintendent/CEO suspects that a crime has been committed on campus. Goodwater Montessori School has the right to suspend or expel a student for violating this Student Code of Conduct.

General Conduct

School community members are expected to:

- Support the Superintendent/CEO, guides, and school staff in the development of a learning community based upon the Montessori pedagogy.
- Abide by the school's policies.
- Acknowledge that the Superintendent/CEO has the ultimate responsibility to implement these policies.
- Work with the school teaching and support staff to deal promptly with areas of concern.
- Treat all members of the school community with respect and courtesy and respect the possessions of others.
- Acknowledge and affirm success in individual and school achievement.

Goodwater Montessori Public Charter School prohibits the following:

Disregard for Authority

- Failing to immediately comply with directives given by school personnel (insubordination)
- Leaving school grounds or school-sponsored events without permission
- Refusing to accept discipline management techniques assigned by a teacher or principal

Mistreatment of Others

- Using profanity, vulgar language, making obscene gestures, and/or making racial slurs towards others
- Fighting or scuffling
- Biting
- Threatening another student or school employee on or off school property, either verbally, in writing, or electronically
- Engaging in physical abuse, verbal abuse, cyberbullying, or social alienation
- Engaging in conduct that constitutes sexual harassment or sexual abuse, whether by word, gesture, or any other conduct, including requests for sexual favors directed toward another student or employee
- Hazing
- Causing an individual to act through the use of a threat of force (coercion)

Disrespecting School Property

Deliberate destruction and defacing of school property, materials, and buildings by students are strictly prohibited. Parents/caregivers will be responsible for monetary replacement of school and any property of others that is damaged. Montessori materials are to be treated with special care as they are the foundation of learning at Goodwater.

Student Refusal to Work

The Montessori Curriculum offers a certain level of student autonomy and independence. Students are expected to do the work they choose, or that is chosen for them. If a student regularly refuses to do work or to participate in the class, parents will be notified, and a Parent/Student meeting will be held with Administration to establish a plan of action.

Biting

Biting is common in some young children, but it is not acceptable behavior. Staff will complete an injury report on any bite that leaves a mark, and parents of the children involved will be informed of the incident. Parents/caregivers will be asked to have a meeting with the Guide and, if necessary, the Administration as well.

Bullying

Specific bullying behavior is aggressive behavior that is repeated over time, intended to hurt, and involves a power imbalance. At Goodwater Montessori School, we believe that bullying is a serious offense that can lead to severe long-term problems for individuals and the school community. Bullying in any form will not be tolerated.

Physical Safety

In particular, all school community members must not:

- Possess a firearm, ammunition, knife, other weapons, or fake (look-alike) weapon on school property.
- Use any object (whether as a weapon or otherwise) to threaten or intimidate any other person or cause injury to any person by the use of any such object on school property.
- Possess, or be under the influence of, or provide others with, alcohol or illegal drugs on school property.

All school community members must:

- Not cause, inflict, or encourage others to verbally abuse, bully, threaten, or inflict bodily harm on another person by any physical aggression.
- Seek staff assistance, if necessary, to resolve conflict peacefully.

Responsibility for Other Community Members

Any parent or school community member who invites a relative, friend, supporter, caregiver, or other people to be present at any official learning or social activity held by or for the benefit of the school and its students must at all times be responsible for that person and ensure they act at all times in a manner consistent with the Student Code of Conduct.

Breach of Code of Conduct

The consequences to a member of the school community for breaching this Code of Conduct will be as determined at the Superintendent/ CEO's discretion.

Discipline Protocol: Procedure For Re-directable Behaviors

Discipline Protocol: Procedure For Re-directable Behaviors

When children show behaviors that need redirection, our process is as follows:

- 1. Guides give a clear, specific direction. If the direction is not followed,
- 2. Guide asks the child what they need in order to get back on task. If not successful,
- 3. Guide gives the child a clear choice between appropriate activities.

If the challenge continues,

4. The behavior support team member comes into the classroom to support the child.

If needed,

5. The behavior support team walks the child from the classroom, fills out a referral form, and contacts the parent/guardian.

6. If possible, the child returns to the classroom and reconnects with the guide. Support staff stays until the child is ready to work.

Behavior Report Procedure:

1. When a behavior report is warranted, the guide fills out page 1 of the referral report and the Support team member involved fills out page 2.

2. This form is in the child's file and is sent home that day.

3. After the third incident warranting a report, a parent/guardian meeting is required.

When children show behaviors that are dangerous, destructive, or demeaning, our process is as follows:

1. The other children leave the classroom, or the student showing the behavior leaves the classroom to ensure the safety of everyone involved.

2. Parents/Guardians are called within the hour.

3. Alternate space is chosen for the student until parents meet with Dr. Bruce and a plan is created.

Process for Suspension

State law allows for a student to be suspended for no more than three school days per behavior violation. Before being suspended, a student and parent will have a conference with the Superintendent/CEO, who shall advise the student and parent of the conduct of which the student is accused. The student will be given the opportunity to explain the incident before the Superintendent/CEO's decision is made. The Superintendent/CEO will determine any restrictions of participation in school-sponsored or school-related extracurricular and curricular activities.

Students may be suspended for any behavior listed in the Code of Conduct as a general conduct violation or expellable offense. In ordering a suspension, Goodwater Montessori School will consider:

- 1. Self-defense
- 2. Intent or lack of intent at the time the student engaged in the conduct
- 3. Student's disciplinary history

Process for Expulsion

If a student commits an expellable offense, as outlined in this Code of Conduct, Goodwater Montessori School may expel the student only after due process has been afforded the student, and the Superintendent/CEO has determined that expulsion is the appropriate consequence. Goodwater Montessori School shall notify the school district in which the student resides within three (3) business days of any action expelling a student from the charter school.

There are two types of expulsion: Mandatory and Discretionary.

Reasons for Mandatory Expulsion:

- As required by the Gun-Free Schools Act (20 U.S. Code § 7151), and as required by the No Child Left Behind (NCLB) Act (Public Law 107-110), any student who is determined to have brought a firearm to school or possessed a firearm at school will be expelled for a period of no less than one year.
- A student must be expelled for committing an offense that qualifies as a felony under the Texas Penal Code.

Reasons for Discretionary Expulsion:

A student may be expelled for the following conduct on school property:

- Engaging in serious offenses or persistent misbehavior.
- Disciplinary infractions that violate the Code of Conduct while under Behavior Contract.
- Criminal mischief

- Disruptive activities (Disorderly Conduct or Assault)
- Disruption of classes
- False reporting (bomb threats, fire alarms, etc.)
- Theft
- Possession of a weapon other than a firearm (see Mandatory Expulsion) and using objects as weapons
- Fighting
- Sexual harassment
- Possession, use, or transmittal of a prohibited substance or drug paraphernalia
- Possession of any fireworks or ammunition
- Criminal trespass
- Threats, extortion, or harassment
- Possessing, using, or being under the influence of alcohol at school or at a school-related function
- Destruction of school property
- Bullying

Discretionary Expulsion Consideration:

In deciding whether to order expulsion, Goodwater Montessori School will consider:

- 1. Self-defense
- 2. Intent or lack of intent at the time the student engaged in the conduct
- 3. The student's disciplinary history

In the event a student is under a Behavior Contract and commits any additional infractions listed under "Reasons for Discretionary Expulsion" the student could be expelled.

In the event a student is under a Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS) plan, has an Individual

Education Plan (IEP), or under a 504 plan, appropriate committee meetings must be conducted to

Determine steps required to support student behavior before any expulsion hearings occur.

Before being expelled, a student and parent will have a conference with the Superintendent/ CEO, who shall advise the student and parent of the conduct of which the student is accused. The student will be given the opportunity to explain the incident before the Superintendent/ CEO's decision is made.

Expulsion Due Process:

If the Superintendent/CEO believes a student has committed an expellable offense, he or she may schedule a hearing and provide written notice to the student and his/her parents, or caregivers of:

- 1. The reasons for the recommended expulsion; and
- 2. The date, time, and location of a hearing before the Superintendent/CEO, within three days after the date of the notice, unless the parents and Superintendent/CEO agree in writing to an alternate time. The notice shall further state that the student is entitled to:

- a. Be present at the hearing
- b. Have an opportunity to present evidence
- c. Have an opportunity to examine/question the school's evidence
- d. Be accompanied by his/her parents or another adult who can provide guidance to the student and who is not an employee of the district.

3. The notice shall also state that failure to request such a hearing constitutes a waiver of further rights in the matter. Hearing before the Superintendent/CEO:

After providing notice to the student and parent of the hearing, the Superintendent/CEO shall hold the hearing regardless of whether the student, the student's parents, or another adult representing the student attends. At the hearing, the school administration shall be allowed to present its evidence of the alleged violation and documented discipline management techniques attempted to correct the undesired behavior, if applicable. The student and/or his parents may present evidence and ask questions of the administrator's adult witnesses in defense of the allegations. Within 24 hours of the hearing, the Superintendent/CEO will notify the student and the student's parents in writing of his/her decision. The decision shall specify:

- 1. The length of the expulsion (no less than a school year)
- 2. The procedures for re-admittance to the school at the end of the expulsion period, and
- 3. The right to appeal the Superintendent/CEO's decision to the governing school board (or its designee)

Right of Appeal

A parent may appeal disciplinary decisions of Goodwater Montessori School Superintendent/CEO to the school's Board of Directors. The student or parent must submit a written request to the President of the Board within three days after receipt of the written disciplinary decision. The Superintendent/CEO must also be copied on this written request. If such a request is made, the board may designate a committee of the board members to hear the appeal. The Superintendent/CEO will provide the student or parent with written notice of the date, time, and place of the meeting at which the board (or its designated committee) will review the decision. The Board of Directors (or its designated committee) will review the record of the disciplinary action in a closed meeting. The board may also hear a committee from the student or parent (or representative) and from the school administration. The board (or its designated committee) may hear statements made by the parties at the review and will base its decision on evidence reflected in the record and any statements made by the parties at the review. Committee will not be deferred pending the outcome of the hearing. The Board of Directors (or its designated committee) will make and communicate its decision orally at the conclusion of the presentation. The decision of the board (or its designated committee) is final. If the student has been expelled prior to a final expulsion or disciplinary hearing, the student is not eligible for re-admission to the School unless the following terms are met:

1. The student must have a clean discipline record at their current school for at least one full year

- 2. The student must reapply as a new student and adhere to the school's lottery process. (Sibling priority will NOT apply to students who have been expelled)
- 3. The student must meet with the Readmission Committee to present a request for re-admission.

The Readmission Committee will be composed of two guides and the Superintendent/CEO (or a designee). The Readmission Committee may request current guide recommendations for the student, relevant commentary from any counselor with whom the student may have consulted, as well as any other documentation pertinent to the application. The student will be allowed to make a statement to support his or her request and may submit additional documentation to the committee for consideration. A parent or other adult representative must also be present for the presentation to the Committee. Upon consultation of the presentation and after review of all relevant documentation, the Committee will make a recommendation on whether the student should be readmitted. The decision of the Readmission Committee may only be appealed to the Superintendent/CEO, whose decision will be final. The student must reapply and follow the same process for admission as if he or she were a new applicant; however, if readmitted, any subsequent violation of the Student Code of Conduct may result in expulsion without the possibility of readmission.

Conflict Resolution

The Board of Directors of Goodwater Montessori School strives for an orderly process for resolving parent/guardian and student complaints. Complaints should be expressed as soon as possible and resolved at the lowest possible level.

The Board of Directors encourages students and parents/guardians to discuss their concerns and complaints through informal conferences with appropriate guides and staff.

Informal Conflict Resolution

Participation in the informal process is mandatory before filing a Level 1 complaint (described below). The Board of Directors expects every reasonable effort will be made to resolve a complaint at the Informal Process level. At this stage, there will be a face-to-face meeting or telephone conference between the Superintendent/CEO and the individual to discuss the complaint. The Superintendent/ CEO may obtain the assistance of other school staff to assist in reaching an informal resolution of the complaint. The Superintendent/CEO has the right to extend the time for filing a complaint unilaterally.

Formal Conflict Resolution

Level 1: Written complaint to Superintendent/CEO.

When a student or parent/guardian of a student has a complaint regarding Goodwater Montessori, the individual shall first submit their complaint in writing to the Superintendent/ CEO. The complaint must be submitted within 15 business days following the date the complainant knows about or should have known about the alleged harm. The complaint must be specific and, where possible, suggest a resolution. The Superintendent/CEO must hear the complaint, attempt to remedy the complaint keeping in mind the best interest of the affected parties and document the outcome. The Superintendent/CEO responds to the complainant and issues a final decision within ten business days of the Superintendent/CEO's receipt of the complaint.

Level 2: Written appeal to Superintendent/CEO.

If the individual submitting the complaint is not satisfied with the Superintendent/ CEO's final decision, the individual may file a written appeal to the Superintendent/CEO. The written appeal shall be filed with the Superintendent/CEO's office within ten business days of the individual's receipt of the Superintendent/CEO's final decision. The complainant shall include a copy of the written complaint to the Superintendent/CEO along with a copy of the Superintendent/CEO's final decision. A copy of the appeal shall also be delivered to the Superintendent/CEO.

The appeal must be specific and, where possible, suggest a resolution. The complaint shall not include any new issues or complaints unrelated to the original complaint expressed to the Superintendent/CEO.

The Superintendent/CEO or designee shall respond to the complaint and issue a final decision within 15 business days of receipt of the written appeal.

Level 3: Written Appeal to Board of Directors.

If the individual submitting the complaint is not satisfied with the Superintendent/ CEO's final decision, the individual may appeal their complaint in writing to the Goodwater Montessori School Board of Directors within 10 business days of receiving the Superintendent/ CEO's final decision. The complaint shall be addressed to the President of the Board and shall include a copy of the written complaint to the Superintendent/CEO, along with a copy of the Superintendent/CEO's final decision. A copy of the appeal shall also be delivered to the Superintendent/CEO. The President of the Board at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall provide a copy of the complaint record to all Board members. The Board's decision shall be decided on a review of the record developed at the Superintendent/CEO's level. Any action of the Board of Directors regarding the complaint shall be taken in compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act. The decision by the Board of Directors is final.

Goodwater Montessori Statement of Activities

| 211 Tale I Deat | | 2021/2022 Initial Budget | A | 21/2022 Amend Iget April 22 | | 21/2022 1 6/30/22 |
|---------------------------------|-------------------------------|-----------------------------|----------|--------------------------------------|----------|----------------------|
| 211 - Title I Part A 00-5929 | Federal Revenue | | \$ | 27,752 | \$ | 26,652 |
| 13-6000 | Curriculum Development | | \$ | 20,933 | \$ | 19,833 |
| 21-6000 | Instructional Leadership | | \$ | 6,119 | \$ | 6,119 |
| 23-6000 | School Leadership | ć | \$ \$ | 700 | \$ \$ | 700 26,652 |
| | | <u>\$ -</u> \$ - | ې \$ | - | ې \$ | 20,052 |
| 224 - IDEA - Part E | , Formula | | Ļ | | Ļ | |
| 00-5929 | Federal Revenue | | \$ | 48,521 | \$ | 48,521 |
| 11-6000 | Instructional | | \$ | 47,521 | \$ | 47,521 |
| 23-6000 | School Leadership | | \$ | 1,000 | \$ | 1,000 |
| | | <u>\$</u> - | \$ | 48,521 | \$ | 48,521 |
| 284 - IDEA - Part E | | Ş - | \$ | - | \$ | - |
| 00-5929 | Federal Revenue | | \$ | 14,586 | \$ | 14,586 |
| 11-6000 | Instructional | | \$ | 14,586 | \$ | 14,586 |
| | | \$ - | \$ | - | \$ | - |
| 225 - IDEA - Part E | | | | | | |
| 00-5929 | Federal Revenue | | \$ | 546 | \$ | 546 |
| 11-6000 | Instructional | | \$ | 546 | \$ | 546 |
| | | \$ - | \$ | - | \$ | - |
| 285 - IDEA - Presc | hool ARP Federal Revenue | | ć | 2 1 2 2 | ~ | 2 1 2 2 |
| 00-5929 | | | \$ | 2,123 | \$ | 2,123 |
| 11-6000 | Instructional | | \$ | 2,123 | \$ | 2,123 |
| 255 - Title II. Part | A: Teacher Principal Training | \$ - | \$ | - | \$ | - |
| 00-5929 | Federal Revenue | | \$ | 3,300 | \$ | 5,177 |
| 13-6000 | Curriculum Development | | \$ | 3,200 | \$ | 5,077 |
| 23-6000 | School Leadership | | \$ | 100 | \$ | 100 |
| | | \$ - | \$ | 3,300 | \$ | 5,177 |
| 289 - Title IV | | \$ - | \$ | - | \$ | - |
| 00-5929 | Federal Revenue | | \$ | 12,548 | \$ | 12,548 |
| 13-6000 | Curriculum Development | | \$ | 12,348 | \$ | 12,348 |
| 23-6000 | School Leadership | | \$ \$ | 200 | \$ | 200 |
| | | \$ - | | 12,548 | \$ | 12,548 |
| 279 - TCLAS | | \$ - | \$ | - | \$ | - |
| 00-5929 | Federal Revenue | | \$ | 2,000 | \$ | 17,713 |
| 11-6000 | Instructional | | \$ | 2,000 | \$ | 4,006 |
| 13-6000 | Curriculum Development | | Ļ | 2,000 | \$ | 4,000 10,218 |
| 23-6000 | School Leadership | | | | \$ | 3,489 |
| | | <mark>\$ -</mark> \$ - | \$ | 2,000 | \$ | 17,713 |
| | | \$ - | \$ | - | \$ | - |

Goodwater Montessori Statement of Activities

| | | | 1/2022 I Budget | 021/2022 Amend dget April 22 | 21/2022 u 6/30/22 |
|---------------------|---|-------|--------------------|---------------------------------------|----------------------|
| 281 - ESSER II | | milia | Duuget | | u 0/ 30/ 22 |
| 00-5929 | Federal Revenue | | | \$ 31,248 | \$ 32,517 |
| 11-6000 | Instructional | | | \$ 27,124 | \$ 32,517 |
| 13-6000 | Curriculum Development | | | \$ 4,124 | , |
| | | \$ | - | \$ 31,248 | \$ 32,517 |
| | | \$ | - | \$ - | \$ - |
| 282 - ESSER III | | | | | |
| 00-5929 | Federal Revenue | | | \$ 64,104 | \$ 58,767 |
| 11-6000 | Instructional | | | \$ 16,524 | \$ 32,732 |
| 12-6000 | Library and Media | | | \$ 103 | \$ 103 |
| 13-6000 | Curriculum Development | | | \$ 44,050 | \$ 22,504 |
| 21-6000 | Instructional Leadership | | | \$ 412 | \$ 412 |
| 23-6000 | School Leadership | | | \$ 1,239 | \$ 1,239 |
| 41-6000 | General Administration | | | \$ 618 | \$ 618 |
| 51-6000 | Facilicities Maintenance and Operations | | | \$ 206 | \$ 206 |
| 61-6000 | Community Services | | | \$ 953 | \$ 953 |
| | | \$ | - | \$ 64,104 | \$ 58,767 |
| | | \$ | - | \$ 0 | \$ - |
| 283 - ESSER Supp | | | | | |
| 00-5929 | Federal Revenue | | | \$ 282,875 | \$ 204,629 |
| 11-6000 | Instructional | | | \$ 181,497 | \$ 125,493 |
| 21-6000 | Instructional Leadership | | | \$ 67,384 | \$ 55,141 |
| 31-6000 | Guidance, Counseling and Evaluation | | | \$ 33,995 | \$ 23,995 |
| | | \$ | - | \$ 282,875 | \$ 204,629 |
| | | \$ | - | \$ - | \$ - |
| 410 - State Textboo | | | | | |
| 00-5829 | State Revenue | \$ | - | \$ - | \$ 1,440 |
| 11-6000 | Instructional | \$ | - | \$ - | \$ 1,440 |
| | | \$ | - | \$ - | \$ - |

Goodwater Montessori Statement of Activities

| | | | | 2021/2022 | | | | |
|----------------------|--|----------|-------------------|-----------|----------------|----------|------------|---------|
| | | | | | mend | | | |
| | | 20 | 21/2022 | Bud | lget April | 20 | 21/2022 | |
| | | Initi | al Budget | | 22 | Thr | u 6/30/22 | 83.333% |
| 460 - Microeconom | • | ć | 2 000 | ć | 1 000 | ć | 701 | 70.05% |
| 00-57xx | Local Revenue | \$ | 2,000 | \$ | 1,000 | \$ | 781 | 78.05% |
| 36-6000 | Extra-curricular | ć | 2 000 | | 1 000 | \$ | 175 | |
| 61-6000 | Community Services | \$ \$ | 2,000 2,000 | \$ \$ | 1,000 1,000 | \$ \$ | 283 458 | 45.78% |
| | | \$ | 2,000 | \$ | - | \$ | 323 | 45.78% |
| 461 - Campus Activi | ty Accounts | Ŷ | | Ŷ | | Ŷ | 525 | |
| 00-57xx | Local Revenue | \$ | 8,000 | \$ | 800 | \$ | 1,501 | 187.66% |
| 11-6000 | Instructional | | | | | \$ | 3,459 | |
| 36-6000 | Extra-curricular | \$ | 8,000 | \$ | 2,500 | \$ | 399 | |
| 61-6000 | Community Services | Ŧ | -, | | _, | \$ | 25 | |
| | | \$ | 8,000 | \$ | 2,500 | \$ | 3,883 | 155.34% |
| | | \$ | - | \$ | (1,700) | \$ | (2,382) | |
| 465 - After School | | | | | | | | |
| 00-57xx | Local Revenue | \$ | 55,000 | \$ | 55,000 | \$ | 41,637 | 75.70% |
| 61-6000 | Community Services | \$ | 50,000 | \$ | 30,000 | \$ | 28,792 | |
| | | \$ | 50,000 | \$ | 30,000 | \$ | 28,792 | 95.97% |
| | | \$ | 5,000 | \$ | 25,000 | \$ | 12,845 | |
| 199 - Fundraising | | | | | | | | |
| 00-5744 | Local Donations | \$ | 3,000 | \$ | 8,300 | \$ | 3,061 | |
| 00-57xx | Local Revenue | ć | 2.000 | \$ \$ | 700 | ć | 2.064 | 24.040/ |
| | | \$ | 3,000 | | 9,000 | \$ | 3,061 | 34.01% |
| 11-6000 | Instructional | \$ | 500 | \$ | 8,200 | \$ | 6,361 | 77.58% |
| 23-6000 | School Leadership | \$ | 2,500 | \$ | 3,900 | \$ | 2,310 | 59.22% |
| | Fundraising Cain (1) and | \$ | 3,000 | \$ | 12,100 | \$ | 8,671 | 71.66% |
| 240 - Ntl School Lun | Fundraising Gain/(Loss) | \$ | - | \$ | (3,100) | \$ | (5,610) | |
| 00-5751 | Local Revenue | \$ | 10,000 | \$ | 18,000 | \$ | 15,888 | |
| 00-5829 | State Revenue | Ŷ | 10,000 | \$ | 12,758 | \$ | 14,008 | |
| 00-592x | Federal Revenue | \$ | 60,000 | \$ | 35,000 | \$ | 32,942 | |
| 00-5939 | Federal Revenue | | | \$ | 1,000 | \$ | - | |
| 00-5923 | Commodities | | | | | | | |
| | | \$ | 70,000 | \$ | 66,758 | \$ | 62,837 | 94.13% |
| 35-6000 | Food Services | \$ | 70,000 | \$ | 70,000 | \$ | 73,319 | 104.74% |
| | Food Service Gain/(Loss) | \$ | - | \$ | (3,242) | \$ | (10,482) | |
| 420 - General Fund | | | | | | | | |
| 00-57xx | Local Revenue | \$ | 107,000 | \$ | 116,000 | \$ | 108,505 | 93.54% |
| 00-581x | State Revenue ASF/FSP | | ,200,000 | | ,025,000 | | 2,447,921 | 80.92% |
| | | Ş 3 | ,307,000 | Ş 3 | 3,141,000 | Şź | 2,556,426 | |
| 11-6000 | Instructional | | ,808,000 | | ,620,058 | | L,412,921 | 87.21% |
| 12-6000 | Library and Media | \$ | 16,000 | \$ | 13,000 | \$ | 12,065 | 92.81% |
| 13-6000 | Curriculum Development | \$ | 2,000 | \$ | - | | | |
| 21-6000 | Instructional Leadership | \$ ¢ | 25,000 240,000 | \$ ¢ | - | ć | 22E 10E | 00 670/ |
| 23-6000 31-6000 | School Leadership Guidance, Counseling and Evaluation | \$ \$ | 18,000 | \$ \$ | 254,000 | \$ | 225,105 | 88.62% |
| 33-6000 | Health Services | \$ | 4,500 | \$ | 400 | \$ | 1,234 | 308.41% |
| 35-6000 | Food Services | \$ | 3,000 | \$ | 2,500 | \$ | 1,817 | 72.69% |
| 41-6000 | General Administration | \$ | 185,000 | \$ | 217,000 | \$ | 183,221 | 84.43% |
| 51-6000 | Facilities Maintenance and Operations | \$ | 900,000 | \$ | 936,000 | \$ | 791,906 | 84.61% |
| 52-6000 | Security | \$ | 1,000 | \$ | 2,000 | \$ | 788 | 39.42% |
| 53-6000 | Data Processing Services | \$ | 93,000 | \$ | 101,000 | \$ | 85,179 | 84.34% |
| 61-6000 | Community Services | \$ | 16,500 | \$ | 12,000 | \$ | 10,133 | 84.44% |
| 71-6000 | Debt Service | <i>.</i> | 212.000 | <i>.</i> | 157.050 | | 724 272 | 06 0701 |
| | Conoral Fund Cairs (1) and | | (5,000) | | (16.058) | | 2,724,370 | 86.27% |
| | General Fund Gain/(Loss) | \$ | (5,000) | \$ | (16,958) | \$ | (167,944) | |
| | Total Revenue | \$ 3 | ,445,000 | \$ 3 | ,763,162 | \$ 3 | 8,091,462 | 82.15% |
| | Total Expenditures | \$ 3 | ,445,000 | \$ 3 | ,763,162 | \$ 3 | 8,264,712 | 86.75% |
| | Net Asset Gain/(Loss) | \$ | - | \$ | 0 | \$ | (173,251) | |
| | | | | | | | | |

Goodwater Montessori Statement of Financial Position

| | As of | As of | | | |
|------------------------------|--------------|--------------|--|--|--|
| | 5/31/22 | 6/30/22 | | | |
| ASSETS | | | | | |
| Cash | \$ 389,745 | \$ 362,253 | | | |
| Accounts Receivable | \$ 295,033 | \$ 264,468 | | | |
| Deferred Expense | \$ - | \$ - | | | |
| Total Current Assets | \$ 684,778 | \$ 626,721 | | | |
| Security Deposit | \$ 50,000 | \$ 50,000 | | | |
| Fixed Assets | \$ 194,081 | \$ 194,081 | | | |
| Total Long Term Assets | \$ 244,081 | \$ 244,081 | | | |
| Total Assets | \$ 928,860 | \$ 870,802 | | | |
| LIABILITIES and EQUITY | | | | | |
| Accounts Payable | \$ 135,831 | \$ 49,310 | | | |
| Loans Payable - Current Year | | | | | |
| Payroll Liabilities | \$ 51,265 | \$ 48,513 | | | |
| Accrued Wages | \$ 68,684 | \$ 63,340 | | | |
| Deferred Revenue | \$- | \$ - | | | |
| Current Liabilities | \$ 255,781 | \$ 161,163 | | | |
| Loans Payable - Long-Term | | | | | |
| Long Term Liabilities | \$ - | \$ - | | | |
| With Donor Restrictions | | | | | |
| Without Donor Restrictions | \$ 882,889 | \$ 882,889 | | | |
| Revenue / Expenses | \$ (209,811) | \$ (173,251) | | | |
| Net Assets | \$ 673,079 | \$ 709,639 | | | |
| Total Liabilities and Equity | \$ 928,859 | \$ 870,802 | | | |